
CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 
AGENDA 

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 

This shall serve as notice that the next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council 
will be held on Tuesday, January 22,2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, 
245 Washington Street, Watertown, New York. 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLLCALL 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

COMMUNICATIONS 

PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR 

RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution No.1 - Authorizing Assignment of City-owned Tax Sale 
Certificate on Parcel Number 06-12-101.000 Known as 
1137 Bronson Street to Mawad Khalil, 53014 Sweet Juliet 
Lane, Lake Elsinor, California 92532 

Resolution No.2 - Authorizing Change to City Fees and Charges Schedule for 
Military Families and Children 

ORDINANCES 

LOCAL LAW 

PUBLIC HEARING 

OLD BUSINESS 

Tabled 

STAFF REPORTS 

Resolution Approving the Special Use Permit Request Submitted 
by Michael Ablan of Genuine Homes, LLC to Allow a Nine-Unit 
Multifamily Dwelling at 518 Pine Street, Parcel Number 10-10-
120.000 

1. Fiscal Year 2017-18 Audit Report 
2. Community Development Block Grant Program Income 
3. 30th Annual Local Government Conference 



NEW BUSINESS 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

WORK SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT 

NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETING IS MONDAY, 
FEBRUARY 4, 2019. 



Res No. 1 

        December 18, 2018  

 

 

To:  Richard M. Finn, City Manager 

 

From:  James E. Mills, City Comptroller 

 

Subject: Tax Sale Certificate Assignment Request – 1137 Bronson Street  

  

  The City has been approached by Mawad Khalil, owner of 1135 Bronson Street, 

requesting to be assigned the City’s tax sale certificate for 1137 Bronson Street.  The tax sale 

certificate was acquired by the City as the default bidder from the tax sale certificate auction held 

on June 22, 2017.  The current redemption price of the certificate is $3,003.84.  The owner of 

record for these parcels is Cassandra Walters and Shawn Granger. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

ACTION: City Manager recommends approval. 

1135 Bronson St. 1137 Bronson St. 



Resolution No. 1 

RESOLUTION 

Page 1 of 1 

Authorizing Assignment of City-owned 
Tax Sale Certificate on Parcel 
Number 06-12-101.000 Known as 
1137 Bronson Street to Mawad Khalil, 
53014 Sweet juliet Lane, 
Lake Elsinor, California 92532 

Introduced by 

January 22,2019 

Council Member COMPO, Sarah V. 

Council Member HENRY-WILKINSON, Ryan J. 

Council Member HORBACZ, Cody J. 

Council Member RUGGIERO, Lisa L. 

Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

YEA NAY 

WHEREAS the City of Watertown is the owner of a certain tax sale certificate on a lot of 
land known as 1137 Bronson Street as designated on the map of the Department of Assessment 
and Taxation of the City of Watertown, New York as Parcel No. 06-12-101.000 and, 

WHEREAS Mawad Khalil has requested the assignment of the tax sale certificate from 
the City for the amount of the tax sale certificate plus all subsequent property taxes paid by the 
City as holder of the tax sale certificate with applicable interest per City Charter Section 140, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the offer of $3,003.84 submitted by 
Mawad Khalil for the purchase of the tax sale certificate for Parcel No. 06-12-101.000 is a fair 
and reasonable offer therefore and the same is hereby accepted, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Comptroller is directed to assign the City's 
tax sale certificate for the above parcel to Mawad Khalil upon the City Comptroller's receipt of 
certified funds in the amount of$3,003.84. 

Seconded by 





Res No.2 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

January 16,2019 

Richard M. Finn, City Manager 

Erin E. Gardner, Superintendent of Parks and Recreation 

Authorizing Change to City Fees and Charges Schedule for 
Military Families and Children 

As discussed at the January 14,2019 City Council Work Session, it was 
agreed that military personnel and their immediate families be charged at the City 
resident rate. This would provide the military with a discount and show that the City 
appreciates their service to our country and our community. 

In addition, it was also agreed that children under the age of four be 
permitted to skate at no cost during Public Skate and Family Skate sessions. 

A resolution for Council consideration is attached. 

ACITON: City Manager recommends approval. 



Resolution No. 2 

RESOLUTION 

Page 1 of 1 

Authorizing Change to City Fees and 
Charges Schedule for Military 
Families and Children 

Introduced by 

January 22, 2019 

Council Member COMPO, Sarah V. 

Council Member HENRY-WILKINSON, Ryan J. 

Council MemberHORBACZ, CodyJ. 

Council Member RUGGIERO, Lisa L. 

Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

YEA NAY 

WHEREAS the City Council establishes a City Fees and Charges Schedule for the City 
of Watertown each year through the budget process, and 

WHEREAS the FY 2018-2019 City Fees and Charges Schedule does not presently 
include discounts for skating at the Watertown Municipal Arena, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Watertown 
hereby authorizes military personnel and their immediate families, upon producing military ID, 
to be charged at the City resident rate, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Watertown hereby 
authorizes that all children under the age of four be permitted to skate at no cost during Public 
Skate and Family Skate session, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these rates and charges take effect upon adoption of 
this resolution. 

Seconded by 



Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 
PARKS .& RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

Watertown Municipal Arena 

600 William T, Field Drive 

Watertown, New York 13501 

parksfsc@watertown-ny,gov 

Phone (315) 785·7775 • Fax (315) 785-7776 

December 26, 2018 

Rick Finn, City Manager 

Erin E, Gardner, Superintendent of Parks & Recreation 

Parks & Recreation Fees for Military and Children 

ERIN E GARDNER 
Superint.nder,t 

As Superintendent of the Parks & Recreation Department, I recommend that we change our fees to 

allow a discount for Military personnel and their immediate families by charging them the City rate. ! 

would also like to recommend that children under the age of four be permitted to skate at no cost 

during Public Skate and Family Skate sessions. 

The Parks and Recreation staff will require a military ID to receive the military discount. Military 

personnel are currently charged the non·City rate. Charging the City rate will not only provide the 

military with a discount but also show that the City appreciates their service to this Country. 

I will be available at the January work session to discuss this recommendation. 

Visit us on the web al watertown-ny.govlrec or on Facebook at faceboox.comlwatertownparksrec13601 



Tabled 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

January 15,2018 

Richard M. Finn, City Manager 

Michael A. Lumbis, Planning & Community Development Director 

Approving the Special Use Permit Request Submitted by Michael Ablan 
of Genuine Homes, LLC to Allow a Nine-Unit Multifamily Dwelling in a 
Residence C District at 518 Pine Street, Parcel Number 10-10-120.000 

At its meeting on Monday, January 7, 2019, the City Council held a public 
hearing on the above subject Special Use Permit Request, and voted to table the 
resolution pending further information about the project and the applicant's property 
management history. 

At the request of the City Council, Code Enforcement Staff researched the 
applicant's ownership record of Code compliance and found no history of violations or 
any other Code-related issues. Code Enforcement Supervisor Shawn McWayne has 
written the attached memo (Attachment 1) for Council consideration. 

Planning Staff visited the site and the enclosed photos (Attachment 2), 
depict various portions of the property. In order to provide screening and privacy for 
neighbors, there are options to install a vegetated buffer along the northern edge of the 
property and fencing along the eastern edge of the property. There are several mature 
trees on the northern edge of the property, but planting a few more would provide a more 
complete screen. On the property's eastern edge, six-foot tall hedges and mature trees 
provide significant screening along much of the property's eastern edge, but replacing the 
existing chain link fence with a wooden stockade fence would provide a much better 
visual screen for the neighboring parcels. Staff would recommend that both of the 
following conditions be added to the resolution as follows: 

1. The applicant shall install a 6' wooden stockade fence along a portion 
of the eastern property line to replace the existing chain link fence. 

2. The applicant shall plant five, 6' evergreen trees, spaced 10' on center, 
along the northern property line provide screening to the adjacent 
home located at 477 Meadow Street South. 

There are a limited number of allowed uses in the Residence C Zoning 
District that are feasible on this property, such as a physician and/or dental office and a 
public park. A building and parcel of this size are impractical for a single-family home. 
Given the allowed uses in the Residence C Zoning District combined with the size of the 
building on this property and the overall size of the parcel, it is Planning Staff's 



professional conclusion that multifamily housing represents the highest and best use of 
this land. 

The previous land use, the Angel's IIll, was a nursing home with 24 beds 
that included a day staff and an evening staff that cared for the residents. The proposed 
nine-unit apartment building represents a less intense use than the Angel's Inn. The City 
Engineering Department has written the attached memo (Attachment 3) concluding that 
the proposal would not have a significant, nor detrimental impact on traffic. 

The applicant's purchase offer for this property is contingent upon 
receiving a Special Use Permit. As detailed above there are very few marketable uses for 
this property. If it fails to sell, there is a considerable probability that this property will 
remain vacant for an extended period of time and continue to deteriorate. A common 
scenario could follow in which the City would become the owner of the property for 
failure to pay property taxes and in the worst case, be responsible for demolishing the 
building. 

The applicant intends to make a significant financial investment in the 
property beyond the purchase price, and has submitted the attached letter from his bank 
(Attachment 4) to demonstrate his commitment to the property and the bank's confidence 
and belief in the project. 

One final requirement that should be identified is that the new owner will 
be required to register the property with the City's rental registration program once the 
property is ready for occupancy. 

ACTION: City Manager recommends approval of the Special Use Permit and the 
addition of the conditions noted above. 

" 



Resolution No. 16 

RESOLUTION 

Page 1 of 1 

Approving the Special Use Permit 
Request Submitted by Michael Ablan 
of Genuine Homes, LLC to Allow a 
Nine-Unit Multifamily Dwelling at 
518 Pine Street, Parcel Number 
10-10-120.000 

Introduced by 

Council Member Cody J. Horbacz 

December 17, 2018 

Council Member HENRY-WILKINSON, Ryan J. 

Council Member HORBACZ, Cody J. 

Council Member RUGGIERO, Lisa L. 

Council Member WALCZYK, Mark C. 

Mayor BUTLER, Jr., Joseph M. 

Total ............................ . 

YEA 

WHEREAS Michael Ablan of Genuine Homes, LLC has made an application for 
a Special Use Permit to allow a nine-unit multifamily dwelling in a Residence C District at 518 
Pine Street, Parcel Number 10-10-120.000, and 

WHEREAS the Planning Board of the City of Watertown reviewed the request 
for a Special Use Permit at its meeting held on December 4,2018, and voted to recommend that 
the City Council of the City of Watertown approve the Special Use Permit with the following 
condition: 

and 

1. The applicant must obtain a building permit and any other permits required 
by the City Code Enforcement Bureau prior to construction. 

WHEREAS a public hearing was held on the proposed Special Use Permit on 
January 7, 2019, after due public notice, and 

WHEREAS the City Council has reviewed the Short Environmental Assessment 
Form, responding to each ofthe questions contained in Part II and has determined that the 
project, as submitted, is an Unlisted Action and will not have a significant effect on the 
environment, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Watertown declares that the proposed Special Use Permit to allow a nine-unit multifamily 
dwelling at 518 Pine Street is an Unlisted Action for the purposes ofSEQRA and hereby 
determines that the project, as proposed, will not have a significant effect on the environment, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Watertown that 
a Special Use Permit is hereby granted to Michael Ablan of Genuine Homes, LLC, to allow a 
nine-unit multifamily dwelling in a Residence C District at 518 Pine Street, Parcel Number 10-
10-120.000, contingent upon the applicant meeting the condition listed above. 

Seconded by Council Member Mark C. Walczyk 

NAY 



MEMORANDUM 
BUREAU OF CODE ENFORCEMENT 

CITY OF WATERTOWN 

TO: Richard M. Finn, City Manager 

DATE: January 11,2018 

FROM: Shawn R. McWayne, Code Enforcement Supervisor 

SUBJECT: 518 Pine Street - Parcel No. 10-10-120 
Michael Ablan, Genuine Homes, LLC 

A 

As requested, the Code Enforcement office has performed historical research on the following 
properties owned by Michael Ablan and Genuine Homes, LLC: 

414 Franklin St. Parcel No. 11-04-101 Purchased 7/3/2017 

1019 State St. Parcel No. 6-15-206 Purchased 8/112018 

1023-25 State St. Parcel No. 6-15-205 Purchased 211/2018 

306 Indiana Ave. N. Parcel No. 5-05-218 Purchased 8/112018 

150 Massey St. S. Parcel No. 10-03-101 Purchased 7/3112018 

208 Pleasant St. S. Parcel No. 12-10-202 Purchased 7/31/2018 

634-36 Lansing St. Parcel No. 3-05-313 Purchased 71212016 

114-116- Pleasant St. N. Parcel No. 6-15-111 Purchased 7/2112017 

715 Lillian St. Parcel No. 3-06-401 Purchased 10/15/2018 

631 Grant St. Parcel No. 4-03-217 Purchased 8/112018 

M9 Ferguson Ave. Parcel No. 6-15-212 Purchased 8/112018 

Since the purchase of the properties by Mr. Ablan, the properties have been maintained and there 
have been no issues reported or violations processed to date. 

The properties have had various violations prior to Michael Ablan's purchase of the properties. 

If you have any further questions, please contact me. 

SRM/cas 



     

     



1869 

DATE: January 14,2019 

CITY OF WATERTOWN 
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Richard M. Finn, City Manager 

FROM: Ben Arquitt, Civil Engineer I 

SUBJECT: Special Use Permit 518 Pine Street 

A Special Use Permit application for a (9) nine-unit multifamily dwelling at 518 Pine 
Street, was reviewed for its potential affect on traffic flow and noise in the area. The 
property is located 150' west of Massey Street South, which is a main artery into and out 
of the city, with an Average Daily Traffic (ADT) of 2,1 02 vehicles per day. 

The increase in traffic that would result from converting the 24-bed nursing home to a 9-
unit multi family dwelling equates to a net gain of only 3 trips per day (57 trips vs. 60 
trips per the ITE Trip Generation Manual). Considering the convenient access to a main 
arterial, Massey Street South, and insignificant increase (5%) in daily trips resulting from 
conversion to a nine-unit apartment building at 518 Pine Street, the proposed project will 
not have a significant, nor detrimental impact on traffic flow or noise in the 
neighborhood. 

cc: GeoffUrda, Planner 



1111 
THE UPSTATE BANKsM 

We make time for you and your business. 
Date:l/14/19 

Mike and James, 

The Upstate National Bank (the "Bank") is pleased to present this Letter of Interest outlining the preliminary terms and 

conditions pursuant to which the Bank may be willing to extend credit. The Upstate Bank is confident in the borrower's ability 

to finish this project. This letter is for discussion purposes only and should not be construed as either a commitment to lend or 

an obligation to issue a commitment to lend on the part of the Bank as the terms outlined herein are subject to formal 

underwriting and approval. The following is a summary of the terms and conditions of the proposed finanCing, it being 

understood and agreed that this letter does not purport to summarize all the terms and conditions which would be contained 

in the Bank's loan documentation. The Upstate Bank is confident in the borrowers ability to finish this project. 

Borrower: Genuine Homes LLC 

Facility: Construction loan to Commercial Mortgage 

Amount Requested: $254,000 or 75% of the "as completed {( appraised value whichever is less 

Use of proceeds: I: Construction line of credit- Purchase 11,000 square feet commercial property and convert to up to 11 
apartments, loan amount at 80% LTV $144,000 and provide $110,000 in renovation funds 

11: Commercial mortgage - payoff construction line of credit 

Repayment: I: 12 months interest only 
II: 25 year term /25 year amortization / payments of principle and interest 

Interest Rate: I: Prime + 1.50% 
II: 5 year fixed: An initial rate will be set one week before closing for the first 5 years I adjusting at the beginning 

of the 6th ,11th ,16th and 21st year period with the 5 year FHLB rate plus 300 bp spread. 

Fees I Prepayment Penalty: }Ii commitment fee on construction LOe and Perm Loan and $3000 good faith deposit for third 

party reports/no prepayment penalty on construction loan as long as permanent loan is with Upstate Bank, otherwise 5% 

prepayment penalty/commercial mortgage will have 5 year PPP{ 5,4,3,2,1) 

Guarantor: Mike Ablan and James Adams 

Collateral: 518 Pine Street, Watertown,NY 

Underwriting commences with signed term sheet, good faith deposit (GFD) and the following checklist in its entirety. 

This term sheet expires January 28 , 2019. 

I look forward to discussing the terms a conditions set forth in this Letter of Interest and working with you to accomplish 

the propose~d ~i_nancing. Should yo 

Ed Tuohey ~ 

Senior Vice esident 

ave any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at (585) 672-6694. Thank you. 

Accepted _________________________________________ Date __________________ __ 

150 State Street I 3 rd Floor I Rochester, New York 14614 I Ph.: 585-454-3450 I Fax: 585-454-3624 I www.upstatebank.colll 



MEMORANDUM 
CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

245 WASHINGTON STREET, ROOM 304, WATERTOWN, NY 13601 
PHONE: 315-785-7740-FAx: 315-785-7829 

TO: Planning Board Members 

FROM: Michael A. Lumbis, Planning and Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Special Use Permit Approval- 518 Pine Street 

DATE: November 29,2018 

Request: Special Use Permit to allow a multifamily dwelling in a Residence C District 
at 518 Pine Street, Parcel Number 10-10-120.000 

Applicant: Michael Ablan of Genuine Homes, LLC 

Proposed Use: Multifamily dwelling 

Property Owner: Heirs of Mary E. Allen 

Submitted: 

8 Yz" x 11" Copy of Parcel Map: Yes A Sketch of the Site to Scale: Yes 

Completed Part I of an SEQRA: Unlisted Action 
Environmental Assessment Form: Yes 

County Planning Board Review Required: No 

Comments: The applicant proposes to convert the former Angels Inn adult home into a nine­
unit multifamily building. The applicant proposes to use the existing parking area behind and 
along the west side of the building. Multifamily dwellings are permitted in Residence C Districts 
only by special approval of City Council, as per Section 310-6 of the Zoning Ordinance. This 
requires the applicant to apply for a Special Use Permit. 

The former Angels Inn Adult Home was previously a 24-bed, 17-room, supervised care facility 
that provided assisted living services to its residents. The retirement and assisted living facility 
closed in 2017 after many years in the community. 



The subject property is surrounded by other residentially zoned land for at least 400 feet in all 
directions. This includes a large Residence C District to the north and an even larger Residence 
A District to the south. The CSX railroad tracks, slightly over 400 feet to the west, are zoned 
Heavy Industry, with a Light Industry District on the other side of the tracks. 

Parking and Vehicular Circulation: Section 31 0.45(A) ofthe Zoning Ordinance states that, 
"Every multifamily dwelling shall provide, in connection with it, vehicle storage or off-street 
parking facilities for automobiles to the number of at least one for each dwelling unit provided in 
such multifamily dwelling. Each parking space or facility for each dwelling unit shall be at least 
300 square feet. In addition, parking space shall be provided for guests on the site of the 
multifamily dwelling to the extent of 10% of the total dwelling units. The parking space for each 
vehicle shall be at least 300 square feet." 

The applicant proposes nine apartment units. This yields a requirement of ten spaces (one for each 
of the nine units plus the required guest space). The applicant depicts 13 proposed spaces on the 
site plan sketch, which is drawn at the 30':1" scale. Upon measurement, the submitted drawing 
depicts the proposed spaces and the drive aisle both as abnormally narrow. However, satellite 
views of the property appear to indicate ample area for ten parking spaces and maneuverability. 

Special Use Permit Standards: Special Use Permits require City Council approval after 
recommendation from the Planning Board and a Public Hearing. The procedure is outlined in 
Section 310.67 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Special Use Permit standards are found in Section 310-52.3 of the Zoning Ordinance. The 
standards are as follows: 

A. General standards. In granting a special use permit, the City Council may specify appropriate 
conditions and safeguards in harmony with the following rules and standards. These conditions 
will be in addition to any that may be imposed as part of site plan approval. 

(1) The use shall be of such location, size and character that it will be in harmony with the 
appropriate and orderly development of the district in which it is situated and will not be 
detrimental to the orderly development of adjacent districts. The nature and intensity of the 
operations involved in or conducted in connection with it shall be compatible with the general 
character and intensity of development of the neighborhood. 

(2) The use's relation to streets giving access to it shall be such that traffic to and from the use 
will not be hazardous or inconvenient to the neighborhood or conflict with the normal traffic of 
the neighborhood. Convenient routes of pedestrian traffic shall be considered in relation to main 
traffic thoroughfares and to street intersections. 

(3) The use's site layout shall minimize the inconvenience to the neighborhood by providing 
adequate parking and adequate visual and noise buffering. The parking requirements of this 
chapter shall be considered the minimum. The buffer composition, density and width shall be 
determined after considering the type of proposed use, type of uses surrounding it and the 
distance from the surrounding uses. 



Building Permits and Other Approvals: It should be noted that if the City Council approves 
the request for a Special Use Permit for this property, the approval will be for the use of the 
property only. The approval does not extend to additional required permitting such as a building 
permit, plumbing permit, etc. The application for a building permit will require the submittal of 
stamped architectural drawings that shows that the proposed conversion meets the NYS Building 
Code and other requirements as determined by the City Code Enforcement Bureau. 

Other: The applicant has submitted a purchase offer on the property that is contingent upon 
receiving a Special Use Permit. However, the applicant is not the current owner of the property, 
and as such, the applicant will need a letter authorizing him to apply for a Special Use Permit on 
the owner's behalf. Since the previous property owner, Mary E. Allen, is deceased, the applicant 
must obtain an authorization letter from Ms. Allen's heirs or someone with power of attorney 
over the estate. 

Summary: The following should be included as contingencies in the motion to approve the 
Special Use Permit: 

1. The applicant must obtain a building permit and any other permits required by the City 
Code Enforcement Bureau prior to construction. 

2. The applicant must submit a letter from the property owner or someone with power of 
attorney over the property that authorizes him to apply for a Special Use Permit on their 
behalf. 

cc: City Council Members 
Michael Ablan, Genuine Homes, LLC 
Justin Wood, City Engineer 
Ben Arquitt, Civil Engineer I 



SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
518 PINE STREET- PARCEL # 10-10-120.000 

The Planning Board then considered a request submitted by Michael Ablan of 
Genuine Homes, LLC for a Special Use Permit to allow a nine-unit multifamily dwelling in a 
Residence C District at 518 Pine Street, Parcel Number 10-10-120.000. 

Mr. Ablan attended to represent the request, along with James Adams, who Mr. 
Ablan introduced as his business partner. 

Mr. Ablan began by saying that the existing building on the subject property was 
formerly the Angels Inn nursing home and that it had 24 rooms, all interconnected. He said that 
he would like to change it into a nine-unit dwelling and that it would be easy to make the 
conversions by connecting rooms. He added that it has a boiler system for the entire building, 
ample water, electric and other utilities. 

Mr. Ablan then said that Staff's memorandum to the Planning Board discussed 
parking. He said that his scale was smaller, but based on a 300 square-foot requirement, the site 
could accommodate 11 spaces, and that if parking became an issue in the future, they could open 
up the garage for an additional two spaces. He noted that they could pave the yard if needed, but 
they could accommodate 10-plus spaces as it was now. 

Ms. Capone then asked what Mr. Ablan planned to charge for rents. Mr. Ablan 
replied that monthly rents would run from $500-to-$600 for studios to $800 for two-bedroom 
units. He added they would be affordable, but nice and that they had a few other units under 
their control at the moment and they always update everything, such as energy efficient 
windows, etc. 

Ms. Fields then said that for full disclosure, Mr. Ablan was a licensed real estate 
agent, as was she, and that she and Mr. Ablan knew each other. Mr. Urda then asked her to 
confirm that she did not have any financial interest in the project. Ms. Fields replied that she did 
not. Mr. Katzman noted that it was New York State law that Ms. Fields and Mr. Ablan, both 
needed to make this full disclosure. 

Mr. Coburn then said that as he read through, everything seemed to be in order. 
He then asked Staff about the summary item that dealt with parking. Mr. Urda replied that Staff 
was satisfied with Mr. Ablan's explanation ofthe site's parking capacity. 

Mr. Katzman then noted that the property's previous owner, Mary E. Allen, was 
deceased and asked how that affected proceedings. Mr. Urda replied that Staff's memorandum 
discussed that issue and that the heirs of Mary E. Allen were the current legal owners under New 
York State law. 

Mr. Katzman then asked who would pay for the utilities, Mr. Ablan or his tenants. 
Mr. Ablan replied that he would pay the utilities and added that he misspoke regarding rents, and 
that he planned to set them at $600 for a studio, $700 for a one-bedroom and $800 for a two­
bedroom, with all utilities included. 



Mr. Arquitt then asked what side of the building the sewer line connected to in the 
basement. Mr. Ablan replied that he thought it was on the Pine Street side and that it was at least 
four inches in diameter. Mr. Adams then said that there was a 3.5-inch and a four-inch 
connection. Mr. Arquitt said that would likely be sufficient for nine units, but that they might be 
liable for an upgrade. 

Mr. Ablan said that there was a sprinkler system in the building and that was why 
there were two lines. He said they did not plan to keep the sprinklers active and that they would 
likely drain it. Mr. Coburn said that Code Enforcement would address sprinkler requirements 
during the permitting process. 

Mr. Coburn asked if anyone wanted to make a motion. Mr. Urda said that the 
Planning Board would not need to include the second summary item in a motion for approval. 
Ms. Fields then moved to approve the request submitted by Michael Ablan of Genuine Homes, 
LLC for a Special Use Permit to allow a nine-unit multifamily dwelling in a Residence C District 
at 518 Pine Street, Parcel Number 10-10-120.000, contingent upon the following: 

1. The applicant must obtain a building permit and any other permits required by the City 
Code Enforcement Bureau prior to construction. 

Mr. Coburn then seconded the motion and all voted in favor. 



/I 

CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 
245 Washington Street, Watertown, NY 13601 
Office: (315) 785-7740 - Fax: (315) 785-7829 

..... .. 

. ........./. Special Use Permit Application 
··········jilil9 ... ··.·····. 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Name' {_ II . I( ( 1/\ i())OJbi J~\OIt"\ t J'a(YI C ~ Acic0.{) 

'vel)I,J.{\t,. H-uMd Lt.- l.rl 

Mailing Address: lD~ u gC\),,(o,.h < .... 
G ovlI' ef'N-.r /;V '1 '51;; 'i>. ... 

Phone Number: 5\~ :.l't.1.o 1)..1\", 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
Property Address: 5(~ P;"t- rJr \ L..h.'t}VTJINV\. fv'1 IJ~c ~ 

Tax Parcel Number(s): t\j- [0-/;;<(3. 111)0 

Property Owner (if not applicant): M ~ f ff\lef\ 

If applicant is not owner or owner's representative, indicate interest in the property: 

• Signed Purchase Agreement (attach) o Signed Lease (attach) 

Zoning District: K<.s I.t.k"\t~ I C 
Land Use: 

Required Attachments: 
• 8.5xl1 parcel map with property outlined with heavy black ink 
• Sketch of the site drawn to an engineering scale (e.g. 1"=20') 
• Completed Part I of the Environmental Assessment Form (SEQR) 

REQUEST DETAILS 
Proposed Use: 

Explain proposal (use additional 8.5xll sheets if necessary): 

~oneyet 

I certify that the information provided in this application is true to the best of my knowledge, 

Signature: ~-. '-"=-----­
December 1,2015 

Date: 



Proposed Use: Conversion from Nursing home into a 9 unit multifamily dwelling 

Explain proposal: We would like the opportunity to convert this old nursing home into a nice 9 unit 

multifamily dwelling. 

The building is 11k sqft, and the lot is 34k. There is enough space 9 spacious apartments, comprising of 

2 bedroom, 1 bedroom and studio units. The building is equipped with central air and a zoned boiler 

system, so every apartment will have control over their own heating & cooling. The property is also fully 

fenced in, so tenants will have a place to let their animals defecate, rather than on the streets or other 

peoples property. The property also has a large off-street parking lot, so the streets won't be littered 

with cars. 

The conversion itself will be relatively easy thanks to the current set up. We would be combining rooms 

in each wing to create apartments. There is currently 6 entrances to the building, which would easily 

suffice this number/~f apartments. Our biggest task will be adding kitchens & bathrooms to each unit, 

but fortunately the basement is extremely open and accessible. 

I would be more than happy to give a complete scope of work and/or sit down with anyone interested in 

the more minute details of the project. We currently own and manage 58 units in Jefferson/5t.Lawrence 

county. We operate at full occupancy and invest every dollar we make back into the properties. We do 

most of our own work, and only work with professional and ethical sub-contractors. I have many 

tenants willing to give testimonials on their opinions on us as landlords. I've attached pictures of some 

of our current units, and have many more available upon request. 

Thank you very much for taking the time to consider our proposal. We are really excited about this 

project and hope you give us the opportunity to bring our vision of this place into life. 

,I 



I~ 

.,., 
........ 

++++ PoIhIIId ""--

s:-+-

_ _ Feet 

50 100 200 Jefferson County. NY 



18 Pine St - Google Maps https:llwww.google.comimaps/place/518+Pine+St. + Watertown,+ NY. .. 

518 Pine St 

Imagery ©2018 Google, Map data ©2018 Google 20 ft 

518 Pine St 
Watertown, NY 13601 



11/14/2018 Property Details - Image Mate Online 

•
•• 

..! . ..: 

Image Mate Online 

ORPS Links Assessment Info 

Commercial Photographs 

Municipality of City of Watertown 
(Click on photo to enlarge it.) 

. '~'.".'.V., ~." " "_M, hM ,,,", ,,",hhO' 4.,,',./ •.. ,_4.'., '.~ •. ·.M._ ,".M. ~.".M'-~'.M". ",.." .'A,·. ~.·",.".·.·.-•• ·.,.", •••• 'Mhh" •• , •• h...,.V.h .,.,"."~~M .. 'M. hh.'." •• MM •. 

SWIS: 221800 ITaxID: I 10-10-120.000 

Account 16093580 
#: 

. " ,~·,,··.·,·~vv,·~~·, .. ··'v,·,·~~,·yyyy,·,·yy~y·,,'·/~~Vy,·,··.··"·,·~-. "' ·.··,,·~,·,··,,·,·,·YV,·,·,·,-,·,·,·y¥'··,,··,~~·" 'N""Y~Y"~ '._'_'··'Y","'·'_VY·"· ,·.·,-v,·~vv,-v·,·,,· " . 

Tax Map ID / Property Data 

Status: Active Roll Section: Taxable 
Photo 

Address: 518 Pine St 

Property 633 - Aged Site 633 -
Property Aged -Class: - home Class: home Maps 

Ownership 
Code: 

Site: Com 1 InAg. No 
District: 

RC- Not 
Zoning Code: Residential Bldg. Style: Applicable 

C 

View Tax Map 

I I-'Iln .-'rop.ertlt onGIS Map 

Neighborhood: 00608 - School Watertown 
District: View in Bing Maps 

Property 165x2071010120 
Description: 

Map Disclaimer 

Total 165 x 207 Equalization ---Acreage/Size: Rate: 

2018 - 2018 -
Land $16,500 Total $195,000 
Assessment: 2017 - Assessment: 2017 -

$16,500 $195,000 

2018 -
Full Market $205,263 
Value: 2017 -

$211,957 

Deed Book: 923 Deed Page: 217 

Grid East: 993388 Grid North: 1447488 
......................... ........ ~= 

Special Districts for 2018 

Description IUnitslPercentl Value 

SW001-Sewer Water Relevy 10 10% 1559.34 
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Special Districts for 2017 

Description Units Percent Value 

SW001-Sewer Water Relevy 0 0% 591.62 
. .......... ......................... ........... ~= . 

Land Types 

Type Size 

Primary 165 x 207 
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Short Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 1 - Project Information' 

Instructions for Completing 

Part 1- Project Information. The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1. Responses 
become part of the application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification. 
Complete Part 1 based on infonnation currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully 
respond to any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on CUITent infonnation. 

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional infom1ation which you believe will be needed by or useful 
to the lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item. 

Part 1 - Project and Sponsor Information 

.. 
Name of Action or Project: 

fVvrs'."I'" tNi'r\P C"f\Vtf1 ;M\ :,'*6 M \) if; ... (,/(\)1-

Project Lbtation (describe, and attach a location map): 

5{o P~t~ .. S~ Wt\~t/\v V'"\ Nt( I'] (g<J i .... 

Brief Description of Proposed Action: 

We. WV..i\cl li~ .\V Cc"V><A- th\\ (h...-J\;j hi)'~ ;/\h.:> q C( YCAf1-M~;-S Co fr'$ j .1\Ij .• "') (;, 

d b::0., I~'e<il (- SM:o 

N~ ~f ~pplicant or Sponsor: Telephone: ]'Ir dYc. 1;,' 4 ,) 

\,~~\ .~\Of\. E-Mail: Db Ic~!\ f"\ r S "1/ ..... "!i{. C<J,-

Atct t~ ~o.\o(ud(. ;s\-' 
City/PO: j State: j Zip Code: 

Gov v\".J'f)"(, /'" fv~ fg~yJ.. 
1. Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinance, NO YES 

administrative rule, or regulation? 

~ D If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the environmental resources that 
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. If no, continue to question 2. \ 

2. Does the proposed action require a pennit, approval or funding from any other governmental Agency? .NO YES 
If Yes, list agency(s) name and pennit or approval: 

D ~ C:,~ ().~ lJ .'\tt:r ~Vf1 , 3V tCl""\ \J~ {)P~N\~ . ,-.I l 

3.a. Total acreage of the site ofthe proposed action? .'~ acres 
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 0 acres 
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned 

0 or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? acres 

4. Check all land uses that occur on, adjoining and near the proposed action. 
DUrban D Rural (non-agriculture) 0 Industrial 00 Commercial ~Residential (suburban) 

DForest DAgriculture o Aquatic DOther (specify): 

o Parkland 

Page lof3 



5. Is the proposed action, NO YES N/A 
a. A pennitted use under the zoning regulations? D rn D 
b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan? D [1 D 

6. Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character ofthe existing built or natural NO YES 
landscape? 0 rn 

7. Is the site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area? NO YES 
If Yes, identify: [] D 
8. a. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels? NO YES 

[] D 
b. Are public transportation service(s) available at or near the site of the proposed action? [] D 
c. Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near site of the proposed action? [] D 

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements? NO YES 
If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies: 

[] D 
10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply? NO YES 

If No, describe method for providing potable water: D [lJ 
11. Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities? NO YES 

If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment: D rn 
12. a. Does the site contain a structure that is listed on either the State or National Register of Historic NO YES 

Places? 0 D 
b. Is the proposed action located in an archeological sensitive area? [1i ] 

13. a. Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or lands adjoining the proposed action, contain NO YES 
wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency? m D 

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody? rn D If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres: 

I "i': 
1;:1:1:,":': , 

14. Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply: 
o Shoreline DForest D Agricultural/grasslands D Early mid-successional 

o Wetland DUrban 'E{! Suburban 

15. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or associated habitats, listed NO YES 

by the State or Federal government as threatened or endangered? [] D 
16. Is the project site located in the 100 year flood plain? N;,.O YES 

1/\ 1 
17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources? NO YES 
If Yes, 

a. Will stonn water discharges flow to adjacent properties? DNO DYES ~ D 
b. Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems Doff and storm drains)? I", 

." 

TfYes, briefly describe: NO DYES I 
". I:····· 

I 
I" .. , '.' 
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18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that result in the impoundment of NO YES 
water or other liquids (e.g. retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)? 

TfYes, explain purpose and size: 
[1] D 

19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the location of an active or closed NO YES 

solid waste management facility? 
If Yes, describe: rn D 
20. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (ongoing or NO YES 

completed) for hazardous waste? 
TfYes, describe: ~ D 
I AFFIRM THAT THE INFORMA TTON PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF MY 
KNOWLEDGE 

Applicantlsponsorname: 8·ld"l6.d A.l">,&.r, Date: Il-/i(-'I~ 
Signature: 'C '"2---2 """ ~ -= 
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Agency Use Only [If applicable] 

Project: I 
Date: :=1 ============j 

Short Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 2 - Impact Assessment 

Part 2 is to be completed by the Lead Agency_ 
Answer all of the following questions in Part 2 using the infon11ation contained in Part I and othermaterials submitted by 
the project sponsor or otherwise available to the reviewer. When answering the questions thereviewet shoUld be guided by 
the concept "Have my responses been reasonable considering the scale and context of the proposed action?" 

2. Will the proposed action result in a change in the use or intensity of use ofland? 

3. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality ofthe existing community? 

4. Will the proposed action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the 
establishment of a Critical Environmental Area (CEA)? 

5. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or 
affect existing infrastmcture for mass transit, biking or walkway? 

6. Will the proposed action cause an increase in the use of energy and it fails to incorporate 
reasonably available energy conservation or renewable energy opportunities? 

7. Will the proposed action impact existing: 
a. public I private water supplies? 

b. public I private wastewater treatment utilities? 

8. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of important historic, archaeological, 
architectural or aesthetic resources? 

9. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change to natural resources (e.g., wetlands, 
waterbodies, groundwater, air quality, flora and fauna)? 

No,or 
small 
impact 
may 
occur 

D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 

Moderate 
to large 
impact 
may 
occur 

D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 

------------------------------------+-------+--------4 
10. Will the proposed action result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage 

problems? D D 
II. Will the proposed action create a hazard to environmental resources or human health? D D 

PRINT FORM Page 1 of2 



Short Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 3 Determination of Significance 

Agency Use Only [If applicable] 

Project: I 
F========l 

Date: IL-.. _________ ---.J 

For every question in Part 2 that was answered "moderate to large impact may occur", or if there is a need to explain why a 
particular element of the proposed action mayor will not result in a significant adverse environmental impact, please 
complete Part 3. Part 3 should, in sufficient detail, identify the impact, including any measures or design elements that 
have been included by the project sponsor to avoid or reduce impacts. Part 3 should also explain how the lead agency 
determined that the impact mayor will not be significant. Each potential impact should be assessed considering its setting, 
probability of occurring, duration, irreversibility, geographic scope and magnitude. Also consider the potential for short­
term, long-term and cumulative impacts. 

o 
D 

Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation, 
that the proposed action may result in one or more potentially large or significant adverse impacts and an 
environmental impact statement is required. 
Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation, 
that the proposed action will not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts. 

Name of Lead Agency Date 

Print or Type Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Title of Responsible Officer 

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Signature of Pre parer (if different from Responsible Officer) 

PRINT FORM Page 2 of2 



January 16,2019 

To: Richard M. Finn, City Manager 

From: James E. Mills, City Comptroller 

Subject: Fiscal Year 2017-18 Audit Report 

Attached for your review is a copy of the independent audit report for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 as prepared by Bowers & Company CPAs PLLC. The 
audit report is also available on the City Comptroller's web page. The audit will be 
presented to City Council Liz Bush of Bowers and Company at the February 11 th Work 
Session. 

ACTION: City Manager recommends your review prior to February 11, 2019. 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 
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BOWERS ~ MPANY 
CPAs PLLC 

CERTIFIED PUB LI C ACCOUNTANTS · BUSINESS CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund , and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 20] 8, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor' s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity' s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity' s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

120 M adison Street, 1700 AXA Tower II, Syracuse, NY 132 02 Phone: 315.234. 1100 .. Fax: 3 15.234 .1111 
11 20 Commerce Park Drive East, W atertown, NY 13601 Phone: 315.788.7690 .. Fax: 315.788 .0966 

www. bcpl lc.com 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of Watertown, New York as of June 30, 2018, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As described in Note 17 to the financial statements, the June 30, 2017 net position has been 
restated to correct misstatements. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As described in Note 2 to the financial statement, in 2018, the City adopted new accounting 
guidance, GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 4-19, the Schedule of the Changes in the City's 
Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 84, budgetary comparison schedule - general 
fund on page 85, the Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability -
NYSLRS Pension Plan on page 86, and the Schedule of the City's Contributions - NYSLRS 
Pension Plan on page 87 to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Watertown, New York's basic financial statements. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 94 is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards on page 94 is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
January 10,2019, on our consideration of the City of Watertown, New York's internal control 
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City of Watertown, New York's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral pati of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City of Watertown, New York's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Wateliown, New York 
January 10,2019 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

As management of the City of Watertown (the "City") we offer this overview and analysis of the 
financial activities of the City of Watertown for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. This 
discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial 
issues, (b) provide an overview of the financial activity, (c) identify changes in the City's 
financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges ), (d) identify any 
material deviations from the approved budget, and (e) identify individual fund issues or concerns. 
Since management's discussion and analysis is designed to focus on the current year's activities, 
resulting changes, and known facts, readers are encouraged to consider the information presented 
here in conjunction with the financial statements that follow. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• Government-wide total net position showed a deficit of ($27,622,445) at June 30,2018. The 
accumulated deficit results primarily from the implementation of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. As presented in Note 17 to the Audited 
Financial Statements, beginning net position decreased $102,496,429 for government 
activities and $13,598,170 for business-type activities as a result of this implementation. 

• The City's total net position increased $2,806,298 in fiscal year 2017-18, which does not 
include prior period adjustments of $391,004 in government-type activities for Federally 
reimbursed prior year bus operating expenditures and ($531,661) in business-type activities 
related to the correction of prior year charges for water and wastewater services. 

• At the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $15,627,732, a decrease of ($1,530,151) from the previous year. 
Approximately 65% of this total amount or $10,145,999 is available for spending at the 
government's discretion (unassigned fund balance). 

• General Fund revenues of $46,307,318 on a budgetary basis exceeded budgeted revenues by 
$1,044,188 or 2.31 % while budgetary basis expenditures finished $1,102,916 lower than 
budgeted expenditures. These results reduced the need to use the full $1,770,944 in 
appropriated fund balance budgeted for in the 2017-18 General Fund budget. 

• The City issued $4,360,000 in bond anticipation notes dated May 31, 2018 maturing April 1, 
2019 at an interest rate of 3.00% (priced to yield 2.0539%) to provide financing for various 
capital projects. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Management's discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic 
financial statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 
(1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the 
financial statements. The financial statements' focus is on both the City as a whole (government­
wide) and on the major individual funds. Both perspectives (govel11ment-wide and major fund) 
allow users to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (inter-period or 
intergovernmental) and enhance the City's accountability. This report also contains 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements, which further explains 
and supports the information presented in these statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. All of the activities of the 
City, except of a fiduciary nature, are included in these statements. The govel11ment-wide 
statements provide shOli-term and long-term information about the City'S financial status as a 
whole. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the City's assets (including capital 
assets) and liabilities (including long-term debt), with the difference between the two reported as 
net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. To assess the overall 
health ofthe City, other indicators, including non-financial indicators like the City's property tax 
base, bond ratings, the condition of its infrastructure, and the County's sales tax base, should also 
be considered. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City'S net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. Since full accrual accounting is used for the govel11ment-wide 
statements, all changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses 
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and interest payments on debt). This statement also focuses on 
both the gross and net costs of the various functions of the City, based only on direct functional 
revenues and expenses. This is designed to show the extent to which the various functions are 
self-supporting and/or dependent on general taxes and other revenues for support. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30,2018 

Government-Wide Financial Statements - Continued 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities include most of the 
City'S basic services such as the City's fire and police services, public works, parks and 
recreation, the bus system, library and general government support. Sales tax, property taxes, 
and State Aid finance most of these services. The business-type activities of the City include the 
water and sewer utilities. User fees support these activities. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Watertown itself (known 
as the primary government), but also the Watertown Empire Zone as a blended component unit 
as it is not a legally separate entity and the Roswell P. Flower Memorial Library Board of 
Trustees as a discretely presented component unit. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements are designed to report information about groupings of related 
accounts, which are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for 
specific activities or objectives. These statements provide more detailed information about the 
City'S most significant funds (major funds) and not the City as a whole. All of the funds of the 
City can be divided into three categories: (1) governmental funds, (2) proprietary funds and (3) 
fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near­
term sources and uses of available resources. These funds are repOlied using the modified accrual 
method of accounting that measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily 
converted to cash. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Fund Financial Statements - Continued 

The governmental funds statements provide a more detailed short-term view that helps determine 
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance 
the City's programs. Because the focus (current financial resources) of governmental funds is 
narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements (total economic resources), it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information 
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, 
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's near-term financing decisions. 
Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City of Wateliown maintains numerous individual governmental funds. Information is 
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the General, Capital Projects and 
Community Development Funds, which are considered to be the City's major governmental funds. 
Data for the other governmental funds is combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 

The City adopts an ammal appropriated budget for all governmental funds. To demonstrate 
compliance with the budget, a Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund has been 
provided as Required Supplemental Information following the Basic Financial Statements. 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges customers 
(both external and internal). These funds use accrual accounting, which is the same method used 
by the private sector. The City of Wateliown has two proprietmy or enterprise funds. The City's 
proprietary funds are the Water and Sewer Funds. Proprietmy funds provide the same type of 
information as shown in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The 
proprietmy fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the enterprise funds, 
both of which are considered to be major funds of the City. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. While these funds represent trust responsibilities of the City, these assets are 
restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the City. Therefore, these assets 
are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements. These funds are reported using the 
accrual accounting method. 

7 

. 
!--



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other Information 

Following the basic financial statements is additional required supplementary information that 
fmiher explains and supports the information in the financial statements. This section includes 
the budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position. At June 30, 2018, the City had a deficit net position (total liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources exceed total assets and deferred outflows of resources) of 
($27,622,445) compared to a net position of $85,806,513 at June 30, 2017 which represents a 
decrease of $113,428,958. The accumulated deficit results primarily from the implementation of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reportingfor Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The City's Accrued Post 
Employment Benefits total $131,028,291 which represents an increase of $108,609,758. The 
largest portion of the City's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, 
building, equipment, improvements, construction in progress and infrastructure), less any related 
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. Capital assets are used to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although 
the investment in capital assets are reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Net investment in capital assets at the end 
of the year were $94,627,661 which represents an increase of$3,698,527 or 4.07%. 

An additional $2,302,716 of the net position represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. Currently, the amount of restricted net position represents 
the net position of the Watertown Empire Zone, Alex T. Duffy Fairgrounds Stadium Repair 
Reserve Fund, Capital Reserve Fund, Tourism Fund, Community Development Fund, Capital 
Projects Fund, Workers Compensation Fund, Insurance Liability Fund and Debt Service Fund. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis - Continued 

CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

$ 62,098,554 $ 59,990,116 $ 32,529,107 $ 30,939,018 $ 94,627,661 $ 

2,270,211 2,701,854 

(114,510,045) (11,411,581) 

Total Net Position $ (50,141,280) $ 51,280,389 $ 22,518,835 $ 34,526,124 $ (27,622,445) $ 85,806,513 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis - Continued 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City's net position by a total 
$683,756 compared to last year's increase of $438,31 0. 

The major factors contributing to the overall revenue decrease of $(549,831) were: 

• Charges for services increased by $1,573,295 primarily due to an increase of $46,675 
for the sale of the City's excess hydro-electricity, an increase of $1,013,704 for stop 
loss insurance policy recoveries related to the City's health plan, an increase of 
$85,240 for prescription rebates related to the City's health plan, an increase of 
$42,615 for refuse totes and stickers and an increase of $38,207 in interest earnings. 
Offsetting these increases was a decrease of $16,518 for building permits and $50,175 
for the sale of real property. 

• Revenue from the City's sales tax distribution agreement with Jefferson County is the 
City's largest revenue source. Sales tax totaled $18,424,974 for the year which was 
an increase of $608,167 or 3.41% over last year's total of $17,816,807. Sales tax 
revenue represented 37.76% of the governmental activities' revenue in FY 17118 
compared to 36.10% in FY 16117. 

• Revenues from property tax related items increased $316,157 or 3.51 % due to the 
levy being increased $349,585 or 4.00% and an increase of $40,126 to the allowance 
for uncollectible property taxes on certain parcels that were in bankruptcy or slated to 
be demolished. 

• Operating grants increased by $620,803 or 44.43% primarily due to the increase of 
$546,275 in Community Development Block grants and $422,450 in Restore NY 
grants. The base level of New York State Aid to Municipalities (AIM) has remained 
unchanged since the FY 2013-14 level of$4,703,208. 

• Capital grants received by the City decreased by $3,763,634. The City did receive 
$1,324,916 in Federal and State Aid for various capital projects compared to 
$5,120,226 in the previous year. Some of the major capital projects receiving aid 
include the Consolidated Local Street and Highway Improvement Program for various 
streets ($334,909), the Factory Street reconstruction project ($585,944), the Western 
Boulevard construction project ($295,678) and the Thompson Park splash pad 
($50,000). 

• Revenues received from the mortgage tax increased by $39,230 or 14.90% from last 
year to $303,280. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis - Continued 

The major factors contributing to the overall expense decrease of $795,277 were: 

• General government suppOli decreased $771,433 primarily due to a decrease of 
$1,406,236 to the annual OPEB expense. Offsetting this decrease was an increase of 
$716,165 for non-pharmacy health insurance claim costs. 

• Fire expenses decreased $992,804 due to a decrease in the department's net pension 
obligation of $460,074 and a decrease in their liability for Other Post-Employment 
Benefits (OPEB) of$347,662. Offsetting these decreases was an increase in overtime 
of$142,242. 

• Police expenses decreased $300,333 due to an increase in the department's net 
pension obligation of $403,266 and a decrease in their liability for OPEB of 
$277,049. Decreases were realized in compensated absences ($154,623) and long­
term workers compensation liability ($158,859). 

• Expenses related to the City's home and community services activIties increased 
$992,179 due to the increased spending of the City's annual Community 
Development Entitlement Community block grants ($569,730) and a Restore NY 
grant ($422,450) for the Lincoln Building. 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City's net position by $2,122,542 
compared to $955,501 last year. Key elements for this year are as follows: 

• Water operating revenues decreased by $28,297 or 0.53% to $5,320,096 while 
operating expenses increased by $47,814 or 0.95% to $5,057,614. Revenues related 
to City customers increased $219,516 or 6.29%. 

• The City has a contract with the Development Authority of the NOlih Country 
(DANC) to produce and deliver treated fresh water to Fort Drum as well as other 
outside water districts connected to the Development Authority of the North 
Country's water distribution line. In the current fiscal year the revenue derived from 
this agreement was $474,521 or a decrease of $238,200 or 33.42% over last year's 
total of $712,721 due to a 27% decrease in volume purchased and a revised contract 
that lowered Fod Drum's electricity charges relating to the water plant. Water 
revenues from this agreement accounted for 8.92% of the total water revenues 
compared to 13.33% last year. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis - Continued 

• Total revenues from water sales to outside of the City customers such as the 
Development Authority of the North Country and Town of Watertown water districts 
was $1 ,313,038 or a decrease of $228,134 or 14.80% over last year's total of 
$1,541,172. Water revenues to outside of the City customers represented 24.68% of 
the water operating revenues compared to 28.82% last year. 

• Sewer operating revenues increased by $457,596 or 7.45% to $6,601,837 and 
operating expenses increased by $68,175 or 1.23% to $5,612,225. Revenues related 
to City customers decreased $100,036 or 3.98%. 

• The City has a contract with the Development Authority of the North Country to 
provide wastewater treatment services to Fort Drum as well as other outside sewer 
districts. In the current fiscal year, the revenue derived from this agreement was 
$1,026,367 or a decrease of $34,086 or 3.21 % over last year's total of $1 ,060,453. 
Sewer revenues from this agreement accounted for 15.55% of the total sewer 
revenues compared to 17.26% last year. 

• Total sewer revenues from outside of the City customers such as the Development 
Authority of the North Countly and Town of Watertown districts was $2,198,029 or 
an increase of $65,949 or 3.09% over last year ' s total of $2,132,080. Sewer revenues 
to outside of the City customers represented 33.29% of the sewer operating revenues 
compared to 32.70% last year. 

Business-type Activities - Operating Revenues and Expenses 

$6,500,000 

$6,000,000 -i-----------------. ..... 

$5,500,000 +----- ----------

$5,000,000 ~~~ 

$4,500,000 -{---
Water Sewer 

o Revenues - Expenses 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-telID inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's 
financing requirements. In patiicular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

At June 30, 2018 the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$15,627,732 representing a decrease of $1,139,147 or 6.79% in comparison with the prior year. 
Approximately 65% or $10,145,999 represents the unassigned fund balance which is available 
for spending at the City's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is 1) non-spendable to 
indicate that it is not available for new spending because it must be maintained intact for prepaid 
expenditures ($21,651), and 2) restricted to indicate limitations on its use imposed by grants, 
debt or legislation ($2,270,211). 

General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the 
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $10,145,999 while the total 
General Fund balance equaled $14,761,993 compared to a restated $15,158,782 in the prior year. 
As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund 
balance and total fund balance to total expenditures and other financing uses. Unassigned fund 
balance represents 21.72% of total General Fund expenditures and other financing uses compared 
to 24.93% last year, while total fund balance represents 31.61 % of that same amount compared 
to 33.17% last year. 

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City'S General Fund decreased by 
$396,789 compared to last year's decrease of$587,583. 

Capital Projects Fund. The capital projects fund accounts for the construction and acquisition 
of the capital assets of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance was 
$210,525 compared to $1,382,466 in the previous year. Within the current year no amount is 
considered restricted due to debt financing and $210,525 is considered assigned due to the 
funding being from operating fund transfers. 

Proprietary Funds. The City'S proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in 
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position at the end of the fiscal year of the Water Fund was ($5,570,419) 
compared to a restated $1,407,253 in the prior fiscal year due to the implementation of GASB 
Statement No. 75. The water fund had an increase in net position in the amount of $146,988 
compared to an increase of $392,866 in the previous year. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds - Continued 

Proprietary Funds - Continued 

Unrestricted net position at the end of the fiscal year of the Sewer Fund was ($4,472,358) 
compared to $2,179,853 in the prior year. The Sewer Fund had an increase in net position in the 
amount of $1 ,975,554 compared to an increase of $562,635 in the prior fiscal year. Other factors 
concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the 
City's business-type activities. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The General Fund budget was adopted numerous times throughout the year to fund a Thompson 
Park wall repair ($125,000), to repair hydro-electric facility windings ($70,000), to avoid debt 
and provide funding for the Massey Street fire station roof replacement ($225,000) and 
Thompson Park splash pad ($170,000), to fund a youth softball program ($3,700) and to fund the 
Arsenal Street bridge lights and storm drainage ($176,000). The Risk Retention Fund budget was 
re-adopted once during the fiscal year to add $6,850 to cover higher than anticipated expenses. 
The Self-Funded Health Insurance Fund was re-adopted to add $1,100,000 to cover higher than 
anticipated health claim costs. Additionally, other routine budget amendments between 
departmental expenditure accounts did occur. 

General Fund revenues of $46,307,318 on a budgetary basis exceeded final budgeted revenues of 
$45,263,130 by $1,044,188 or 2.31% while budgetary basis expenditures of $46,704,107 were 
$1,102,916 or 2.31% lower than the final budgeted expenditures of $47,807,023. Areas where 
actual revenues to budgeted revenues fell ShOli were sale of real propeliy ($22,542), mOligage tax 
($21,720), refuse stickers ($17,660), Arena fees ($21,067), Arena skating charges ($23,290) and 
Federal transpOliation assistance ($450,000) due to the transition of the City's bus system from a 
Section 5311 program to a Section 5307 program. Revenues that did exceed budgetary 
expectations were sales tax ($149,974), sale of hydro-electric power ($983,579), insurance 
recoveries from the City health plan's stop loss policy ($383,878), health plan prescription rebates 
($95,856) and Arena concession sales ($41,545). Actual expenditures were lower than the 
budgeted expenditures due mostly to utilities ($37,758), contracted services ($433,489), vehicle 
expenses ($32,166), health insurance premiums ($152,602), transfers to the Capital Fund 
($129,886). These combined results reduced the use of $1,770,944 in appropriated fund balance 
that was budgeted in the 2017-18 General Fund original adopted budget to $396,789. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

The City's investment in capital assets, net of related debt, for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2018, amounts to $94,627,661. This investment in capital assets includes land, 
buildings, improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, traffic signals and other infrastructure. 

~r.~~--~. ____ .. -_._.-_ .. _~_·· ___ =--~~. __ r~_~~-__ ~ __ ~_ - .~--_ ,_~~.-_._. _, -- .--. ~ 

~~~~~-~~~-~~ 
Governmental Activities Business~!y]2e Activities Total 

6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 

Land $ 2,621,285 $ 2,621,285 $ - $ - $2,621,285 $2,621,285 

Construction in 1,812,615 21,131,035 2,460,627 4,420,020 $4,273,242 $25,551,055 
Progress 
Land Improvements 2,907,096 2,653,999 - - $2,907,096 $2,653,999 

Building and 29,308,661 18,116,108 16,668,416 17,226,109 $45,977,077 $35,342,217 
Improvements 
Infi'astructure 40,743,685 32,874,288 21,991,705 18,535,775 $62,735,390 $51,410,063 

MachinelY and 2,148,466 2,644,839 2,707,692 2,893,020 $4,856,158 $5,537,859 
Equipment 
Vehicles 2,241,373 2,085,388 444,195 186,306 $2685568 $2271 694 

Total Capital Assets $81 783 181 $82 126942 $44272 635 $43261230 $126055816 $12538lU72 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following projects: 

• Completed the replacement of the heating and ventilation system at the Roswell P. Flower 
Memorial Library at a cost of$1,322,800. 

• Completed the Factory Street project which included the reconstruction of2,600 linear feet of 
street as well as the replacement of the sidewalks, curbs, water main and sanitary sewer at a 
cost of$13,332,518. 

• Completed the construction on the Arena rehabilitation which included the roof repair, floor 
replacement, fire suppression system upgrade, locker and restroom renovations and vestibule 
and office expansions at a cost of $1 0,662,180. 

• Continued with the design of renovating and expanding the Wateliown City Court which is 
estimated to cost at least $2,000,000. Construction in progress at year-end was $76,756. 

• Started the construction of the Western Boulevard extension which is estimated to cost 
approximately $6,500,000 and include the construction of 1,500 linear feet of street as well as 
sidewalks and curbs. Construction in progress at year-end was $449,395. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration - Continued 
• Started the construction of a 4,000 square foot splash pad in Thompson Park which is 

estimated to cost $440,000. Construction in progress at year end was $331,761. 

• Continued with the design of the sludge modification project for the wastewater treatment 
plant. The proj ect is being segmented into Phases 1 a and 1 b. Phase 1 a achieves a significant 
carbon footprint reduction through the el imination of the use of fuel oil as an auxiliary fuel as 
well as a reduction in electrical consumption and enables the discontinuance of sewage 
sludge incineration. Phase 1 b enables biogas conditioning and beneficial reuse which will 
enable a further reduction of the plant's electrical demand. The project is estimated to cost 
$9,850,000. The City was awarded a grant from the New York State Energy and Research 
Authority in the amount of $585,646. The City has also been awarded a New York State 
Environmental Facilities Corporation grant of the lesser of 25% of the project cost or 
$2,306,840. Additionally, the City has qualified for a zero percent loan for the project 
balance through the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation. Construction in 
progress at fiscal year-end was $1,767,102. 

• Started the construction of the Flower A venue East which is estimated to cost approximately 
$3,350,000 and includes the reconstruction of 2,900 linear feet of street, sidewalks and curbs 
as well as the installation of a dedicated storm sewer, an upgrade to a 16" water main and 
new sanitary sewer. Construction in progress at year-end was $774,918. 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$31,820,000. This entire amount is backed by the full faith and credit of the City of Watertown. 
Following is a comparative statement of outstanding debt: 

f~~'~:i:7; ~'.~~':;~~<~!~;' ,; :/C;:'!:c' ';:' 1"'>l§fm~:~!l~~'fult~@).1iil'f3;~!lritij,'W;J'l(mugttJiAT~I~tffiW:~J:ti:ir·'y:: :: '''.' ,': .: ' :,' - ' ',1~> '~ '. 
~~;:'f.""" 1 ,J11"~."'~' " , ,.1 ~ ~ t " ",t, _,- Ie ~, " ' 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 

6/3012018 6/3012017 6/30/2018 6/3012017 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 
General Obligation 

$ 19,739,953 $ 22,207,810 $ 12,080,047 $ 13,717,190 $ 31,820,000 $ 35,925,000 
Bonds 
Total $ 19,739,953 $ 22,207,810 $ 12,080,047 $ 13,717,190 $ 31,820,000 $ 35,925,000 

The New York State Constitution restricts the City's level of indebtedness to an amount no greater than 
7% of the average full valuation of taxable real property for the most recent five years. Water debt, 
sewer debt, self-sustaining debt and refunded debt are excluded from the debt limit calculation. 
Accordingly, as of June 30, 2018, the City's NYS Constitutional debt limit was $81,740,099 with total 
net indebtedness of $16,608,703 after statutory exclusions thus exhausting 20.32% of the City'S debt 
limit. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30,2018 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration - Continued 

Short-Term Debt 

The City issued $4,360,000 in bond anticipation notes dated May 31, 2018 maturing April 1, 
2019 at an interest rate of 3.00% (priced to yield 2.0539%) to provide financing for various 
capital projects. The bond anticipation notes are reflected in the capital projects fund and 
enterprise funds. The notes are backed by the full faith and credit ofthe City of Watertown 

Additional information on the City's capital debt can be found in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when adopting the fiscal year 
2018-19 budget, most impOliantly the state and local economy. 

The City of Wateliown is the county seat of Jefferson County. The unemployment rates in June 
2018 were 5.3% for the Wateliown-Fort Drum area, 4.8% for Jefferson County, 4.2% for New 
York State and 4.0% for the United States. The unemployment rates in June 2017 were 5.8% for 
the Wateliown-FOli Drum area, 5.5% for Jefferson County, 4.6% for New York State and 4.3% for 
the United States. 

Budget factors considered during the preparation of the FY 2018-19 budget included the national 
and state economies, low interest rates, high unemployment and high NYS Retirement System 
contribution rates. With the continued uncertainties overseas, it was difficult to predict how 
many of the 15,110 soldiers of the 10th Mountain Division at Fort Drum would be deployed and 
for how long they would be gone fighting the War on Terrorism. 

Like most local governments, the City's 2018-19 budget continued to be impacted by the high 
costs for retirement benefits although FY 2018-19 was the fifth year in a row that saw the 
retirement rates decrease. The contribution to the Employees' Retirement System will range 
from 9.2% to 19.5% of salaries, down slightly from a range of 9.3% to 19.7% in the previous 
year. The contribution rate for the Police and Fire Retirement System will range from 14.3% to 
23.9% of salaries, down from 14.8% to 24.6% of salaries in the previous year. Due to the 
dramatic drop in the stock market from April 2008 to April 2009 the State Pension Fund lost 
approximately 40% of its value. Due to the NYS Retirement System's smoothing techniques the 
retirement rates are now starting to decline after years of increases to keep the pension fund 
adequately funded 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2018 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates - Continued 

Due to increases in health claim costs in FY 2017-18 the self-insurance fund required premiums 
be increased 9.42% over the FY 2017-18 premiums as compared to last year's 18.38% increase. 
The City did not over-ride the NYS Propeliy tax cap and thus only increased its property tax levy 
by $207,138 or 2.27% which was the allowable increase under the NYS propeliy tax cap law. 
The City saw an increase of only $8,374,139 or 0.78% in taxable assessed value. Accordingly, 
the property tax rate increased 1.49% to $8.6405 per $1,000 of taxable assessed valuation. 

The City's FY 2018-19 General Fund operating costs increased by $1,694,587 or 3.97% to 
$44,397,432 in light of a significant increase to health insurance contributions. Reductions were 
realized in transfers to the Capital Fund for pay-as-you-go projects, retirement expense and 
workers compensation. The City appropriated $2,000,000 of fund balance, an increase of 
$1,000,000 over FY 2017-18. The City increased its estimate for sales tax revenue, the largest 
General Fund revenue source, by $235,000 or 1.29% over the FY 2017-18 budgeted amount. 
The City increased its estimate for the sale of excess hydro-electricity by $286,000 or 7.49% due 
to above average results the last couple of years. The City has an agreement with National Grid 
for the purchase of the City's excess hydro-electricity that increases 4.33% per year of the 
agreement which expires December 31,2030. 

Appropriations for the Water Fund increased by $433,684 or 7.91 %. The Water Fund was able 
to appropriate $115,950 of fund balance and additionally required a 5.00% increase to water 
rates. The Sewer Fund appropriations increased $396,979 or 6.27% while revenues increased 
only $53,103 or 0.85%. Revenues from sewer charges for sludge and leachate haulers increased 
$49,000 or 4.65% while revenue from other governments increased $168,000 or 7.81%. The 
Sewer Fund also was able to lower the sewer rates by 5.00% and additionally appropriated 
$456,547 of fund balance. 

Requests for Information 

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those 
with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to the 
City Comptroller, City of Wateliown, Municipal Building, 245 Washington Street, Wateliown, 
New York 13601. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 
AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2018 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 

Umestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents S 13,733,550 S 6,897,803 S 20,631,353 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,320,549 2,938,732 8,259,281 

Investments - Certificates of Deposit 

Receivables (Net of Nlowance for Uncollectibles) 

Accounts 3,570,069 2,098,590 5,668,659 

Taxes 416,348 416,348 

Due from Other Governments 2,183,199 93,521 2,276,720 

State and Federal Aid Receivables 1,127,137 340,914 1,468,051 

Prepaid Expenses 21,651 21,651 

Internal Balances (33,745) 33,745 

26,338,758 12,403,305 38,742,063 
Capital Assets 

Non-Depreciable 4,433,900 2,460,627 6,894,527 

Depreciable, Net 77,349,281 41,812,008 119,161,289 

Total Capital Assets 81,783,181 44,272,635 126,055,816 

TOTAL ASSETS 108,121,939 56,675,940 164,797,879 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Charge on Bond Refunding 55,326 55,326 
Dcfcrred Outflows of Resources, Pensions 8,607,527 861,637 9,469,164 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, OPEB 3,362,626 352,129 3,714,755 
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 12,025,479 1,213,766 13,239,245 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payablc S 1,286,535 S 914,163 S 2,200,698 

Accrned Interest Payable 61,367 61,575 122,942 

Accrned Liabilities 3,297,393 68,758 3,366,151 

Current Debt Obligations Duc Within One Year 2,369,612 1,615,888 3,985,500 

Compensated Absences Due Within One Year 7,209 7,209 

Other Liabilities 15,730 15,730 

Bond Anticipation Note 2,340,000 2,020,000 4,360,000 

Due to Other Govenunents 254,687 53 254,740 

Due to Retirement System 1,199,335 86,331 1,285,666 

Unearned Revenue 2,325,867 22,232 2,348,099 

Accmed Post Employmcnt Bcnefits 114,779,556 16,248,735 131,028,291 
Other Long-Term Liabilities 1,002,511 107,274 1,109,785 

Net Pension Liability - Proportionate Share 3,735,835 312,580 4,048,415 
Workers Compensation Liability 1,573,364 853,954 2,427,318 

Serial Bonds Due and Payable After One Year 17,388,341 10,511,659 27,900,000 

TOTAL LIAIlILITIES 151,621,612 32,838,932 184,460,544 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Inflows of Resources, Pcnsions 8,904,566 1,043,630 9,948,196 

Deferred Inflows of Resourccs, OPEB 9,762,520 1,488,309 11,250,829 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 18,667,086 2,531,939 21,199,025 

i'iET POSITION 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 62,098,554 32,529,107 94,627,661 
Restricted for: 

Capital Reserves 550,798 550,798 
Workers Compensation Reserve 231,796 231,796 
Insurance Reserve - General 727,969 727,969 

Tourism Reserve 32,983 32,983 

Economic Development and Assistance 214,666 214,666 

Corrummity Development 311,990 311,990 

Debt Service 200,009 32,505 232,514 
LibraI)' 

Umcstricted (114,510,045) (10,042,777) (124,552,822) 

TOTAL NET POSITION S (50,141,280) S 22,518,835 $ (27,622,445) 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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Component Unit 

The Trustees of the 

Roswell P. Flower 

Memorial Library 

87,018 

135,550 

60,156 

58 

29,678 

312,460 

14,516 

44,388 

58,904 

371,364 

1,143 

1,143 

160,550 

209,671 

S 370,221 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

FUNCTIONSIPROGRAMS 
Governmental Activities 

General Government Support 

General Government Support 

Hydroelectric Production 

Public Safety 

Fire 
Police 

Other Public Safety 

Public Works 

Transportation 
Bu, 

Economic Opportunity and Development 

Other Economic Assistance 

ErnpireZone 

Culture and Recreation 

Library 

Other Culture and Recreation 

Home and Community Services 

Refuse and Recycle 
Other Home and Community Services 

Interest on Debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities 

Water 

Sewer 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Total Primary Government 

Component Unit 
The Trustees of the R.P. Flower Memorial Library 

Total Component Unit 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position Brou~ht Forward 

Expenses 

16,000,561 

693,337 

8,892,486 

7.741.336 

572.310 

6.683.319 

912,062 

19,789 

4,625 

1.144.678 

2,484,483 

732,127 

1,554,028 

712.146 

48,147,287 

5,201,453 
5,844,081 

11,045.534 

59.192.R21 

90,536 

90.5311 

"r·" 

Charges for 

Services 

4,827,582 

4,803,579 

122.783 

109.473 
102,923 

147.083 

18,794 

529,749 

870,171 

66,655 

11,598,792 

5.320,096 

6,601,837 

11.921,933 
23520725 

Program Revenues 

Operating 

Grants and 

Contributions 

52,250 

7,261 

212,415 

287,765 

46.566 

1,411.689 

2.017,946 

2 017 9411 

100,922 

100.922 

GENERAL REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

Salcs Taxes 

Utilities Gross Receipts Tax 

Franchise Tax 

Hotel Occupancy Tax 

Mortgage Tax 

Grants and Entitlements Not Restricted 

to Specific Programs 

Invcstment Earnings 

Total General Revenues 

Transfers 

Change in Net Position 

Total Net Position - Beginning of Year 

Prior Period Adjustment 

Capital 

Grants and 

Contributions 

1,318.777 

2,925 

149,988 

1,471.690 

30,419 

1.218.995 

1.249,414 

2.721.104 

Total Net Position' Begmning of Year, Restated 

Total Net Position - End of Year 

Governmental 

Acti~ 

(\1,120,729) 

4,110,242 

(8,892,486) 

(7,611,292) 
(462,837) 

(5,049,204) 

(477,214) 

(19,789) 

(4,625) 

(1,076,393) 

(1,804,746) 

138,044 

(75,684) 

~ 
(33,058,859) 

(33,058,859) 

(33,058,8591 

9,335,317 

18,424,974 

291,913 

365,200 

213,470 

303,280 

4,703,208 

~ 
33,712,615 

~ 
~ 
51,280,389 

(~ 

(50,825,0361 
(50.141.280) 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Component 
Chan~es in Net Position Unit 

Business- The Trustees of the 

Type Roswell P. Flower 

Activities Total Memorial Librarv 

(11,120,729) 

4,110,242 

(8,892,486) 

(7,611,292) 

(462,837) 

(5,049,204) 

(477,214) 

(19,789) 

(4,625) 

(1,076,393) 

(1,804,746) 

138,044 

(75,684) 

(712, 1461 
(33,058,8591 

\49,062 149,062 

~ 1,976,751 

2,125,813 2,125,813 

2,125,813 (30,933,0461 

10,386 

10,386 

2,125,813 (30,933, 0461 10,386 

9,335,317 

18,424,974 

291,913 

365,200 

213,470 

303,280 

4,703,208 

26,729 101,982 1.307 
26,729 33,739,344 1.307 

PO,UOOl 
2.122.542 2,806.298 11.693 

34,526.124 85,806.513 358,528 

(14, 129.831~ !116.235.256l 

# 20,396,293 P°,428,7431 
22.51R.R15 (27.022.445) 370.221 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2018 

Capital Community 
General l'rojects Devel0l!ment 

ASSETS 
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 13,719,807 $ $ 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,535,404 3,230,250 313,265 
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles) 

Accounts 1,677,410 22,839 1,865,990 
Taxes 416,175 173 

Due from Other Governments 2,183,199 
State and Federal Aid Receivables 594,015 422,456 110,666 
Prepaid Expenses 21,651 
Due from Other Funds 596,481 52,362 

TOTAL ASSETS ~ 20744.142 ~ 3.728.080 ~ 2.289.921 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable $ 745,706 $ 447,673 $ 82,264 
Accrued Liabilities 3,110,688 172,591 1,316 
Compensated Absences 7,209 
Bond Anticipation Note 2,340,000 
Due to Other Funds 227,170 554,762 28,361 
Due to Other Governments 254,687 
Due to Retirement System 1,176,812 2,529 
Unearned Revenue 459,877 1,865,990 

Total Liabilities 5,982,149 3,517,555 1,977,931 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 

Prepaid Expenses 21,651 
Restricted for 

Capital Reserve - General 547,782 
Capital Reserve - Fairgrounds 3,016 
Workers Compensation Reserve 231,796 
Insurance Reserve - General 727,969 
Tourism Reserve 32,983 
Debt Service Reserve 173,140 
Community Development Reserve 311,990 
Economic Development and Assistance Reserve 

Assigned to 
Self-Funded Health Insurance Plan 710,205 
General Government Support 16,939 
Fire 23,892 
Police 14,453 
Other Public Safety 1,843 
Public Works 32,260 
Bus 4,740 
Other Culture and Recreation 20,580 
Hydroelectric Production 762 
Refuse and Recycle 210 
Other I-lome and Community Services 51,773 
Capital Projects 210,525 
Subsequent Year's Expenditures 2,000,000 

Unassigned 10,145,999 

Total Fund Balances 14,761,993 210,525 311,990 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ~ 20.744.142 ~ 3.728080 ~ 2.289.921 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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Non Total 
Ma,ior Governmental 
Funds Funds 

$ 13,743 $ 13,733,550 
241,630 5,320,549 

3,830 3,570,069 
416,348 

2,183,199 
1,127,137 

21,651 
128,000 776,843 

~ 387,203 ~ 27 149346 

$ 10,892 $ 1,286,535 
12,798 3,297,393 

7,209 
2,340,000 

295 810,588 
254,687 

19,994 1,199,335 
2,325,867 

43,979 11,521,614 

21,651 

547,782 
3,016 

231,796 
727,969 

32,983 
26,869 200,009 

311,990 
214,666 214,666 

710,205 
16,939 
23,892 
14,453 

1,843 
32,260 

4,740 
20,580 

762 
210 

51,773 
210,525 

101,689 2,101,689 
10,145,999 

343,224 15,627,732 

~ 387,203 ~ 27 149346 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

RECONCILIA TION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2018 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts rep0l1ed for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because: 

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported as assets in governmental funds: 

The Cost of Capital Assets is 
Accumulated Depreciation is 

DefelTed outflows of resources that are not available to pay for cUlTent-period expenditures and, 
therefore, are not reported in the fund statements consist of: 

Defen'ed Charge on Advance Refunding of Bonds 

DefelTed Outflows of Resources, Pensions 

Deferred Outflows of Resources, OPEB 

Long-tenn liabilities, including serial bonds and other long-term debt, are not due and payable in the 
current period and therefore not rep0l1ed as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end 
consist of: 

Bonds Payable 
Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable 
Compensated Absences 
Workers Compensation Liability 
Landfill Post-Closure Liability 

Net Pension Liability - Prop0l1ionate Share 
Other Postemployment Benefits Payable 

DefelTed inflows of resources that are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, 
therefore, are not rep0l1ed in the fund statements consist of: 

Deferred Inflows of Resources, Pensions 

Deferred Inflows of Resources, OPEB 

TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

15,627,732 

164,748,861 
(82,965,680) 
81,783,181 

55,326 

8,607,527 

3,362,626 

(19,739,953) 
(61,367) 

(912,511) 
(1,573,364) 

(108,000) 

(3,735,835) 
(114,779,556) 
(140,910,586) 

(8,904,566) 

(9,762,520) 

{50214122802 

i 
F 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Capital Community 

General Projects Development 

REVENUES 

Real Property Taxes $ 8,998,253 $ $ 

Real Property Tax Items 337,063 

Nonproperty Taxes 19,295,558 

Departmental Income 6,665,001 

Intergovernmental Charges 129,787 

Use of Money and Property 132,328 19,114 60 

Licenses and Permits 97,902 

Fines and Forfeitures 94,797 

Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss 1,740,361 

Miscellaneous Local Sources 1,282,970 125,050 62,845 

Interfund Revenue 1,457,064 

State Sources 5,655,825 773,033 422,450 

Federal Sources 253,934 551,883 886,732 

Total Revenues 46,140,843 1,469,080 1,372,087 

EXPENDITURES 

General Government Support 5,147,165 8,700 

Public Safety 16,695,247 633,783 

Transportation 4,557,226 2,379,994 

Economic Assistance and Opportunity 19,789 

Culture and Recreation 1,796,301 779,224 

Home and Community Services 1,321,933 53,400 1,285,141 

Employee Benefits 11,520,477 

Debt Service 2,996,516 

Total Expenditures 44,054,654 3,855,101 1,285,141 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 2,086,189 (2,386,021 ) 86,946 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES) 

Interfund Transfers In 166,475 1,328,049 

Interfund Transfers Out (2,649,453) (113,969) (78,435) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,482,978) 1,214,080 (78,435) 

Net Change in Fund Balances (396,789) (1,171,941) 8,511 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 14,767,778 1,382,466 303,479 

Prior Period Adjustment 391,004 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, Restated 15,158,782 1,382,466 303,479 

Fund Balances, End of Year $ 14,761,993 $ 210,525 $ 311,990 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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Non Total 

Major Governmental 

Funds Funds 

$ $ 8,998,253 

337,063 

19,295,558 

6,665,001 

129,787 

592 152,094 

97,902 

14,963 109,760 

1,740,361 

68,907 1,539,772 

1,457,064 

2,925 6,854,233 

1,692,549 

87,387 49,069,397 

5,155,865 

17,329,030 

6,937,220 

4,626 24,415 

844,465 3,419,990 

2,660,474 

414,332 11,934,809 

171,229 3,167,745 

1,434,652 50,629,548 

(1,347,265) (1,560,151) 

1,409,137 2,903,661 

(31,804) (2,873,661) 

1,377,333 30,000 

30,068 (1,530,151) 

313,156 16,766,879 

391,004 

313,156 17,157,883 

$ 343,224 $ 15,627,732 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 
different because: 

Govenunental funds repOJi capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and repOJied as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which the 
depreciation expense exceeded the capital outlays in the period. 

Capital Outlays $ 4,118,200 
Depreciation Expense 

Govemmental nmds report repayment of bond principal as an expenditure. 
However, in the Statement of Net Position, the principal payments reduce the liability 
and do not result in an expense in the Statement of Activities. 

Increase in propOJiionate share of net pension liability and related deferred 
outflows/inflows repOJied in Statement of Activities do not provide for or require the 
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as revenues or 
expenditures in the govemmental funds. 

Employees' Retirement System $ 
Police and Fire Retirement System 

Loss on Disposal of Assets 

Amoliization of deferred charge on bond refunding 

Interest expendihll·es are reported when paid in the govemmental funds, however, the 
total amount of interest incurred for the period is accrued and recognized in the 
government-wide financial statements. The net change in accrued interest is 
recognized as interest expense in the Statement of Activities. 

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences 
(vacations and sick pay), special early telmination benefits (early retirement) and 
OPEB costs - are measured by the amounts eamed during the current period. In the 
governmental nll1ds, however, expenditures for these items are measured by the 
amount of current fmancial resources used. 

Long-term portions of accrued claims and judgments, and landfill monitoring liability 
are included in the outstanding liability in the Statement of Net Position. 
Accordingly, the net change in the long-term pOJiion is repOJied as a reduction to that 
liability rather than an expense in the Statement of Activities. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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(4,368,034 ) 

(2,173) 
(290,419) 

$ (1,530,151) 

$ 

(249,834) 

2,467,857 

(292,592) 

(93,926) 

(15,658) 

3,398 

137,856 

256,806 

683,756 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

ST ATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
June 30,2018 

Business - Type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Water Sewer Total 
ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,191,480 $ 3,706,323 $ 6,897,803 
Accounts Receivable, 

Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 1,130,729 967,861 2,098,590 
Due from Governmental Funds 36,459 60,857 97,316 
Due from Other Governments 93,521 93,521 
State and Federal Aid Receivables 17,081 323,833 340,914 

Total Current Assets 4,375,749 5,152,395 9,528,144 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,382,933 1,555,799 2,938,732 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 20,410,221 23,862,414 44,272,635 

Total Non-Current Assets 21,793,154 25,418,213 47,211,367 

TOTAL ASSETS 26,168,903 30,570,608 56,739,511 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Pensions 468,933 392,704 861,637 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, OPEB 172,386 179,743 352,129 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 641,319 572,447 1,213,766 
LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable $ 608,251 $ 305,912 $ 914,163 
Accrued Interest Payable 20,124 41,451 61,575 
Accrued Liabilities 33,307 35,451 68,758 
Due to Retirement System 46,865 39,466 86,331 
Due to Governmental Funds 48,256 15,315 63,571 
Due to Other Governments 53 53 
Other Liabilities 15,730 15,730 
Unearned Revenue 14,320 7,912 22,232 
Bond Anticipation Notes Payable 1,415,000 605,000 2,020,000 
Current Portion of Long-tenn Liabilities 702,090 913,798 1,615,888 

Total Current Liabilities 2,903,996 1,964,305 4,868,301 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Workers Compensation Liability 306,926 547,028 853,954 
Compensated Absences 61,373 45,901 107,274 
Net Pension Liability 170,165 142,415 312,580 
Other Post Employment Benefits Liability 8,486,434 7,762,301 16,248,735 
Serial Bonds Payable 4,015,159 6,496,500 10,511,659 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 13,040,057 14,994,145 28,034,202 

Total Liabilities 15,944,053 16,958,450 32,902,503 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Inflows of Resources, Pensions 568,141 475,489 1,043,630 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, OPEB 764,492 723,817 1,488,309 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,332,633 1,199,306 2,531,939 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 15,071,450 17,457,657 32,529,107 
Restricted for Debt 32,505 32,505 
Unrestricted ~5,570,4192 ~4,472,3582 ~1O,042,7772 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 9,533,536 $ 12,985,299 $ 22,518,835 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PROPRIET ARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Business - Type Activities 
Enteq~rise funds 

Water Sewer 

OPERA TING REVENUES 
Charges for Services $ 3,946,760 $ 4,354,317 
Intergovernmental Charges 1,313,038 2,198,029 
Other Operating Revenue 60z298 49z491 

Total Operating Revenues 5,320,096 6,601,837 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries, Wages and Employee Benefits 2,480,067 2,563,152 
Contractual Services 1,841,965 2,278,430 
Depreciation 732,968 756,840 
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 2,614 13,803 

Total Operating Expenses 5,057,614 5z612,225 

Income from Operations 262,482 989,612 

NON-OPERA TING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest Revenue 12,926 13,803 
Interest Expense {143 z839} {231 z856} 

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) {130,913} {218,053} 

Income Before Contributions and Transfers 131,569 771,559 
Capital Contributions 30,419 1,218,995 
Transfers Out {1\000} {15,000} 

Change in Net Position 146,988 1,975,554 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 16,496,504 18,029,620 

Prior Period Adjustment {7,109z956} {7,019z875} 

Net Position, Beginning of Year, Restated 9z386,548 ll z009,745 

Net Position, End of Year $ 9,533,536 $ 12,985,299 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 8,301,077 
3,511,067 

109,789 

11,921 z933 

5,043,219 
4,120,395 
1,489,808 

16,417 

10z669,839 

1,252z094 

26,729 
{375,695} 

(348,966} 

903,128 
1,249,414 

{30,000} 

2,122,542 

34,526,124 

04)29z831) 

20,396z293 

$ 22,518,835 

. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

ST ATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Business - Type Activities 

Enterprise Funds 

Water Sewer 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Cash Received from Providing Services $ 4,972,189 $ 6,165,661 

Cash Payments for Contractual Expense (1,853,301) (2,241,572) 

Cash Payments for Personal Services and Benefits (2,401,670) (2,036,506) 

Other Operating Revenue 44,791 49,492 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 762,009 1,937,075 

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities 

Transfers to Other Funds (15,000) (15,000) 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Proceeds of Capital Debt 1,655,000 365,000 

Principal Paid on Capital Debt (735,478) (901,664) 

Interest Paid on Capital Debt (141,116) (234,812) 

Capital Grants 50,137 1,218,995 

Net Cash Provided By Capital and Related Financing Activities 828,543 447,519 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Purchase of Capital Assets (400,404) (1,670,931 ) 

Interest Income 27,244 21,716 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (373,160) (1,649,215) 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,202,392 720,379 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 3,372,021 4,541,743 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 4,574,413 $ 5,262,122 

Reconciliation oflncome from Operations to Net 

Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

Income from Operations $ 262,482 $ 989,612 

Depreciation 732,968 756,840 

Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 2,614 13,803 

Change in Operating Assets 

Accounts Receivable (302,406) (606,847) 

Due from Other Governments 21,678 215,930 

Due from Other Funds (11,632) 4,233 

Due from Federal and State Governments (15,506) 

Deferred Outflows of Resources, Pensions (141,761) (103,042) 

Change in Operating Liabilities 

Accounts Payable (12,119) 33,413 

Accrued Liabilities 1,737 10,234 

Compensated Absences 3,976 (2,306) 

Due to Retirement System (1,925) (2,149) 

Due to Other Governments (315) 

Other Liabilities 14,732 500,996 

Net Pension Liability (318,084) (292,630) 

OPEB Liability (711,809) (693,678) 

Customer Deposits and Overpayments 4,752 

Due to Other Funds 1,096 3,445 

Deferred Inflows of Resources, Pensions 467,039 385,404 

Deferred Inflows of Resources, OPEB 764,492 723,817 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 762,009 $ 1,937,075 

Reconciliation of Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Current Assets - Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,191,480 $ 3,706,323 

Non-Current Assets - Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,382,933 1,555,799 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,574,413 $ 5,262,122 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 11,137,850 

(4,094,873) 

(4,438,176) 

94,283 

2,699,084 

(30,000) 

2,020,000 

(1,637,142) 

(375,928) 

1,269,132 

1,276,062 

(2,071,335) 

48,960 

(2,022,375) 

[,922,771 

7,913,764 

$ 9,836,535 

$ 1,252,094 

1,489,808 

16,417 

(909,253) 

237,608 

(7,399) 

(15,506) 

(244,803) 

21,294 

11,971 

1,670 

(4,074) 

(315) 

515,728 

(610,714) 

(1,405,487) 

4,752 

4,541 

852,443 

1,488,309 

$ 2,699,084 

$ 6,897,803 

2,938,732 

$ 9,836,535 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
June 30, 2018 

Private 
Purpose Agency 
Trusts 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 37,817 $ 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 37,817 $ 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits Held and Due to Others $ $ 
Cafeteria Plan 
Other Accrued Liabilities 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION 
Held in Trust for Other Purposes 7,825 
Held in Trust for Scholarships 29,992 

TOT AL NET POSITION 37,817 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 37,817 $ 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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Funds 

210,368 

210,368 

155,328 
51,135 

3,905 

210,368 

210,368 

Total 

$ 248,185 

$ 248,185 

$ 155,328 
51,135 
3,905 

210,368 

7,825 
29,992 

37,817 

$ 248,185 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

ADDITIONS 
Interest Revenue 

Total Additions 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 

Net Position, End of Year 

See notes to audited basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

Private 
Purpose 
Trusts 

27 

27 

27 
37,790 

37,817 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of Watertown, New York (the City) have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The City's reporting entity applies all relevant 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial repOliing principles. The more significant accounting 
policies used by the City are discussed below. 

Reporting Entity 

The City was incorporated in 1869. The Chmier of the City of Watertown, City law and other 
general laws of the State of New York, govern the City. The City Council, which is the 
governing body of the City, consists of the Mayor and four Councilpersons. The City Manager 
serves as Chief Executive Officer of the City and is appointed by the Council. The City 
Comptroller serves as the Chief Fiscal Officer of the City and is appointed by the City Manager. 

The City provides the following basic services: public safety (police and fire), water and sewer, 
library, recreation, refuse collection, economic assistance, street maintenance, snow removal, and 
general administrative services. 

The financial reporting entity consists of: 

1. The primmy government which is the City of Watertown. 

2. Organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable. 

3. Other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth in GASB Statement 14, The 
Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by both GASB Statement 39, Determining 
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units and GASB Statement 61, The 
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Reporting Entity - Continued 

Based on the forgoing criteria and the significant factors presented below, the following 
organizations are included in the reporting entity: 

Watertown Empire Zone 

Portions of the City of Watertown were designated as an Economic Development Zone on July 
27, 1994. The program is designed to attract new businesses to the area and to enable existing 
businesses to expand and create jobs by offering a variety of financial incentives and economic 
benefits. The City Council appoints a voting majority of the Program's governing body and 
significantly influences the activities of the Watertown Empire Zone Program. The City includes 
the Watertown Empire Zone as a blended component unit. 

The Trustees of Roswell P. Flower Memorial Library 

The Trustees of the Roswell P. Flower Memorial Library, a nonprofit organization, was formed 
May 1, 1901 to care for and maintain the library as a free public library for the City of 
Watertown. The City Council appoints the Organization's governing body and significantly 
influences the activities of the Organization. The decision to include a potential component unit 
in the City'S reporting entity is based on several criteria including legal standing, fiscal 
dependency, and financial accountability. Based on the application of these criteria, the Trustees 
of the Roswell P. Flower Memorial Library is included as a discretely presented component unit. 
Copies of their financial statements may be obtained at 229 Washington Street, Watertown, New 
York 13601. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

New Accounting Standards 

The City has adopted all current Statements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) that are applicable. At June 30, 2018, the City implemented, as applicable, the following 
new standards issued by GASB: 

• Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions, effective for the year ending June 30, 2018 

• Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017 effective for the year ending June 30, 2018 

Future New Accounting Standards 

GASB has issued the following new statements for which the City is reviewing and plans on 
adopting as required. 

• Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations effective for the year ending June 
30,2019 

• Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities effective for the year ending June 30, 2020 

• Statement No. 87, Leases effective for the year ending June 30, 2021 

• Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and 
Direct Placements effective for the year ending June 30, 2019 

• Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period effective for the year ending June 30, 2021 

The City will evaluate the impact each of these pronouncements may have on its financial 
statements and will implement them as applicable and when material. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a 
whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the City's major funds). Both the government­
wide statements and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either 
governmental or business-type. The City's police and fire protection, parks, library and 
recreation, public works, spolis arena, and general administrative services are classified as 
governmental activities. The City's water and sewer services are classified as business-type 
activities. 

Government-Wide Statements 

The government-wide statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of 
Activities. These statements present summaries of activities for the primary government 
(governmental and business-type) statements and its component units. The focus of the 
government-wide statements addresses the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change 
in the City's net position resulting from the current year's activities. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type 
activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a 
full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as 
well as long-term debt and obligations. The City's net position is reported in three parts - net 
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. 

The Statement of Activities repOlis both the gross and net cost for each of the City's functions or 
programs. The functions are also suppOlied by general government revenues (propeliy, sales and 
use taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of 
Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, 
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function 
(police, public works, community and youth services, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating 
grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the 
capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. The net costs (by function or business-type 
activity) are normally covered by general revenue (property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental 
revenues, interest income, etc.). 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued 

Fund Financial Statements 

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial 
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Fund 
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by 
segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. The City records its 
transactions in the fund types described below: 

1. Governmental Funds 

The focus of the governmental fund's measurement (in the fund statements) is upon 
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and 
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a 
description of the governmental funds of the City: 

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. In addition, risk-based activities and central garage activities have been recorded in 
the General Fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
special revenue sources that are legally restricted for specified purposes. The City 
maintains the following special revenue funds: 

Community Development Fund - To account for the use of Federal monies 
received under the Community Development Act and any other economic 
development project revenue. The Community Development Fund is considered a 
major fund for reporting purposes. 

Public Library Fund - To account for the operation of the Roswell P. Flower 
Memorial Library. 

Debt Service Fund - To account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of 
general long-term debt principal and interest for the mandatory reserve fund. The debt 
service fund also accumulates interest earned on borrowed money. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Fund Financial Statements - Continued 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial 
resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital expenditures. The 
Capital Projects Fund is considered a major fund for reporting purposes. 

2. Proprietary Funds 

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, 
changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The 
following is a description of the proprietary funds of the City: 

Enterprise Funds - To account for water and sewer operations. 

Water Enterprise Fund - established by law to account for revenues derived 
from charges for water consumption and benefited assessments and the 
application of such revenues toward related operating expenses and debt 
retirement. 

Sewer Enterprise Fund - established by law to account for revenues derived 
from charges for sewer usage and benefited assessments, and the application of 
such revenues toward related operating expenses and debt retirement. 

3. Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others 
and therefore are not available to support City programs. The repOliing focus is on net 
position and changes in net position and is reported using accounting principles similar to 
proprietary funds. 

The City'S fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type 
(private purpose or agency). Since, by definition, these assets are being held for the 
benefit of a third party (other local governments, private parties, etc.) and cannot be used 
to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated 
into the government-wide statements. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Basis of Accounting / Measurement Focus 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures and the related assets and 
liabilities are recognized in the accounts and reported in the basic financial statements. Basis of 
accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus. 
Measurement focus is the determination of what is measured, i.e., expenditures or expenses. 

Accrual Basis - The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund 
financial statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all the City's assets and liabilities, including 
capital assets, as well as infrastructure assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the 
accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in 
net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned 
and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Modified Accrual Basis - The governmental fund financial statements are prepared using 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are 
recorded when measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. 
Material revenues that are accrued include real property taxes, state and federal aid, sales 
tax, and certain user charges. Expenditures are recorded when incurred except for prepaid 
expenditures and inventory items, which are recognized at the time of purchase; principal 
and interest on indebtedness, which are not recognized as expenditures until due; and 
compensated absences, such as vacation, which vests or accumulates and is charged as 
expenditures when paid. 

Property Taxes 

Real property tax levies are fully accrued at the beginning of the fiscal year and are received and 
accounted for in the general fund. Accruals for "due to other funds" are recorded in the general 
fund for the portion of the tax revenue allocated to other funds. The current year's property taxes 
are levied, and the prior year's unpaid water and sewer bills are re-Ievied on a warrant to collect 
taxes due as of July 5 based on the assessed value of real property within the City. The City also 
levies and collects property taxes on behalf of Jefferson County, which become due as of January 
15, and enforces collection of unpaid City school taxes transmitted by the school district to the 
City in December of each year. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Property Taxes - Continued 

Uncollected property taxes assumed by the City as a result of the settlement proceedings are 
reported as receivables in the general fund to maintain central control and provide for tax 
settlement and enforcement proceedings. The amount owed to the School District for uncollected 
school taxes is $200,919 and is included in "Due to other Governments". A portion of the total 
property taxes receivable, $327,772, is considered unavailable and is included in liabilities as 
unearned revenues. 

An allowance for uncollectible taxes of $731,532 has been included in the General Fund 
accounts receivable balance at June 30, 2018. Amounts considered to be uncollectible are based 
on historical trends and specific knowledge related to particular parcels. 

The City is permitted by the Constitution of New York State to levy property taxes up to 2% of 
the five-year average full-assessed valuation for general governmental services other than the 
payment of debt service and capital expenditures. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City had 
exhausted 16.93% of its tax limit and had a constitutional margin of$19,350,800. 

Budget Policies 

The budget policies are as follows: 

1. Prior to April 30 of each year, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed 
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating 
budget includes proposed expenditures and the sources of financing. 

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayers' comments. 

3. At the last regular or special meeting in May the budget is adopted by the City Council 
through the adoption of various resolutions. 

4. City taxes included in the budget are levied on July 5. The collection period is July 5 
through August 5. 

5. The Comptroller is authorized to approve certain budget transfer requests within 
departments or within a fund; however, any revisions that alter total expenditures of any 
department or fund must be approved by the City Council. 

6. For year-end financial reporting, adjustments are made to actual results to conform to 
modified budget classifications and reflect year-end encumbrances. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Budget Policies - Continued 

The City prepares a legally adopted annual operating budget for the General Fund. The City's 
budget is adopted using a basis of accounting consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). The City's actual amounts in the financial statements are presented on a 
GAAP basis; therefore, no reconciliation is necessary. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported revenue and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The City considers cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, time and demand deposits, 
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

Receivables 

Receivables are stated net of the estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts. Amounts 
considered to be uncollectible are based on collection experience. Amounts due from state and 
federal governments represent amounts owed to the City to reimburse it for expenditures incurred 
pursuant to state and federal programs. Other receivables represent amounts owed to the City, 
which include sewer rents, water rents, rehabilitation loans, and assessments. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as 
of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend 
the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are 
expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 
Water and Sewer System 
Machinery and Equipment 
Building Improvements 
Land Improvements 
Other Infrastructure 

Compensated Absences 

Employees are granted the following compensated absences each year: 

Sick Leave 
Vacation 

50 years 
60 - 65 years 

5 - 30 years 
5 - 25 years 

20 - 50 years 
10 - 50 years 

12 days 
10- 30 days 

Sick leave may be accumulated from year-to-year, up to 180 days. Upon retirement or other 
termination, no payment is made for accumulated sick time except for police, firemen and 
electrical workers who may receive a portion of their sick leave at retirement. The liability for 
sick leave is recorded in the Statement of Net Position since it is anticipated that none of the 
liability will be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. Vacation time vests and 
may be accumulated from year-to year up to 10 days for management, civil service employee's 
association members, police and electrical workers and 5 days for all other employees. The 
liability will be liquidated with expendable available financial resources; therefore, it is 
accounted for in the respective governmental fund type. The non-current pOliion (the amount 
estimated to be used in subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately 
and represents a reconciling item between the fund and government-wide presentations. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Insurance and Risk Management 

In accordance with New York State guidelines and GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and 
Financial Reports for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, the City self-insures for the 
following: 

1. General Liability - The City has a self-insurance program for general liability insurance. 
The reserved fund balance is recorded within the General Fund. 

2. Workers' Compensation - On May 10, 1920 the City became self-insured for the purposes 
of providing benefits under the Workers Compensation Law of the State of New York. 
The City recognizes workers compensation expenditures when paid. Annual estimates are 
appropriated from the General and Enterprise funds, as determined by the City Council. 
An estimated liability of $2,474,818 as of June 30, 2018 has been recorded on the 
Statement of Net Position representing the long-term liability of open workers 
compensation cases. 

3. Unemployment Insurance - The City has a self-insurance program for unemployment but 
has not established a reserve for claims. Expenditures are recorded as claims are 
submitted. Total unemployment insurance expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2018 
were $4,691. 

4. Health Care Benefits - On July 1, 1992, the City became self-insured for health care 
benefits for all eligible City employees and retirees. A third-party administrator selected 
by the City manages this self-insurance plan. A stop loss policy was also purchased to 
protect and insure this plan against major claims in excess of $175,000. The City has 
calculated a monthly premium equivalent based upon historical experience and projected 
costs that are billed to the respective funds on a monthly basis. An estimated liability of 
$701,714 has been recorded in the self-insurance fund for claims incurred as of June 30, 
2018 but not reported based upon historical experience. 

Operating Revenue and Expenses 

The City'S proprietary funds distinguish between operating and nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. Operating revenues and expenses of the City's water and sewer funds consist of 
charges for services and the costs of providing those services, including depreciation and 
excluding interest costs. All other revenues and expenses are reported as nonoperating. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not 
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has three 
items that qualify for repOliing in this category. The first is the deferred charge on refunding 
reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. A deferred charge on refunding 
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This 
amount is deferred and amOliized over the life of the refunding debt. The second item is related 
to pensions reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. This represents the 
effect of the net change in the City's proportion of the collective net pension asset or liability and 
difference during the measurement period between the City's contributions and its proportion 
share of total contributions to the pension systems not included in pension expense. The third 
item is the City's contributions to the PFRS and ERS pension systems and to the Other 
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) plan subsequent to the measurement date. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position includes a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate statement element, deferred iriflmvs of resources, represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resource (revenue) until that time. The City has two items that qualifies for reporting 
in this category. The first item is related to pensions reported in the government-wide Statement 
of Net Position. This represents the effect or the net change in the City's proportion of the 
collective net pension asset or liability and difference during the measurement periods between 
the City's contributions and its proportion share of total contributions to the pension systems not 
included in pension expense. The second item is related to OPEB reported in the government­
wide Statement of Net Position. This represents the effect of net changes of assumptions or other 
inputs. 

Equity Classifications 

Government-Wide Statements 

In the Government-wide statements there are three classes of net position: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated 
depreciation) reduced by outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted Net Position - repOlis net position when constraints placed on the assets or deferred 
outflows of resources are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments, or imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Equity Classifications - Continued 

Government-Wide Statements - Continued 

Unrestricted Net Position - repOlis the balance of net position that does not meet the definition 
of the above two classifications and is deemed to be available for general use by the City. 

Fund Statements 

Fund balance is the excess of assets over liabilities in a governmental fund. There are five 
separate components of fund balance, each of which identifies to what extent the City is bound to 
honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts can be spent. The five components 
are: 

1. Nonspendable Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that cannot be spent because 
they are either: (a) not in a spendable form, such as prepaid items, inventories of supplies, 
or loans receivable; or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such 
as the principal portion of an endowment. 

2. Restricted Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that has constraints placed on the 
use of resources that are either: (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

3. Committed Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that can 
only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the 
City Council and remain binding unless removed in the same manner. 

4. Assigned Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that are 
constrained by the government's intent to be used for specific purposes, but that are 
neither restricted nor committed. Such intent needs to be established either by the City 
Councilor by an official designated for that purpose. 

5. Unassigned Fund Balance - The pOliion of a fund balance that includes amounts that do 
not fall into one of the above four categories. 

The City considers restricted fund balances to have been spent first when an expenditure is 
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. 
Similarly, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the 
unrestricted classifications of fund balance could be used, the City considers committed amounts 
to be used first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Fund Statements - Continued 

The City does not currently have a formal minimum fund balance policy. The City Council shall 
approve all commitments by formal action. The action to commit funds must occur prior to fiscal 
year-end to report such commitments in the balance sheet of the respective period, even though 
the amount may be determined subsequent to fiscal year-end. A commitment can only be 
modified or removed by the same formal action. 

When it is appropriate for fund balance to be assigned for items, such as encumbrance amounts, 
the City Council delegates the responsibility to assign funds to the City Comptroller. 
Assignments may occur subsequent to fiscal year-end. 

NOTE 2 -CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The 
implementation of the statement requires the City to report Other Post-Employment Benefits 
(OPEB) liabilities, OPEB expenses, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB. See Note 17 for the financial statement impact of the implementation 
of the statement. 

NOTE 3 -CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

State statutes govern the City investment policies. In addition, the City has its own written 
investment policy. City monies must be deposited in FDIC insured commercial banks or trust 
companies located within the state. The City Comptroller is authorized to use demand accounts, 
certificates of deposits and permissible investments. Permissible investments include obligations 
of the U.S. Government and its agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State of 
New York, obligations issued by any municipality, school district or corporation other than the 
City of Watertown and obligations of public authorities, public housing authorities, urban 
renewal agencies and industrial development agencies where the State authorizes such 
investments. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City limited its investments to 
demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and U.S. Treasury Bills. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Continued 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be 
returned to it. While the City does not have a specific policy for custodial credit risk, New York 
State statutes govern the City's investment policies. 

The City does not typically purchase investments and is not exposed to material interest rate risk. 

The City does not typically purchase investments denominated in foreign currency and is not 
exposed to foreign currency risk. 

Collateral is required for demand and savings deposits and certificates of deposit for all deposits 
not covered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are 
obligations of the United States and its agencies, obligations of the State, its municipalities and 
school districts, treasury strips and other obligations as outlined in the City's investment policy. 

Separate bank accounts are not maintained for all City funds. Instead, the majority of the cash is 
deposited in pooled checking and savings accounts with accounting records maintained to show 
the portion of the balance attributable to each fund. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider all highly liquid 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Deposits - GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, directs that 
deposits be disclosed as to custodial risk if they are not covered by depository insurance, and the 
deposits are either: 

a) Insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by collateral held by the 
City or by the City'S agent in the City's name; or 

b) Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust 
department or agency in the entity's name; or 

c) Uncollateralized. (This includes any bank balance that is collateralized with securities 
held by the pledging financial institution, its trust department, or agent but not in the 
entity's name.) 

Total financial institution (bank) balances at June 30, 2018 per the banks were $30,713,048. 
These deposits are categorized as follows: 

(a) (b) (c) 

$ 785,783 $ 29,927,265 

45 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIV ALENTS - Continued 

As of June 30, 2018, the City had the following cash equivalents: 

U.S. Treasury Bills (4 week) 
Certificates of Deposit - Trust & Agency Funds 
State and Local Government Series Securities 
Total 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

$ 12,075,000 
25,963 

8,323 
$ 12,109,286 

A summary of the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Governmental Activities June 30, 2017 Increases Decreases June 30, 2018 
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets: 
Land $ 2,621,285 $ $ $ 2,621,285 
Construction in Progress 21,131,035 3,742,235 (23,060,655) 1,812,615 

Total 23,752,320 3,742,235 (23,060,655) 4,433,900 

Depreciable Capital Assets: 
Land Improvements 9,564,403 513,184 10,077,587 
Buildings and Improvements 33,687,442 12,215,053 (127,000) 45,775,495 
Infrastructure 69,679,426 10,158,812 79,838,238 
MachinelY and Equipment 13,334,768 310,365 (747,233) 12,897,900 
Vehicles 11,514,948 715,474 (504,681) 11,725,741 

Total 137,780,987 23,912,888 (1,378,914) 160,314,961 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation: 
Land Improvements 6,910,404 260,087 7,170,491 
Buildings and Improvements 15,571,334 942,200 (46,701) 16,466,833 
Infrastructure 36,805,138 2,289,415 39,094,553 
MachinelY and Equipment 10,689,929 348,935 (289,429) 10,749,435 
Vehicles 9,429,560 527,397 (472,589) 9,484,368 

Total 79,406,365 4,368,034 (808,719) 82,965,680 

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 58,374,622 19,544,854 (570,195) 77,349,281 

Total $ 82,126,942 $ 23,287,089 $ (23,630,850) $ 81,783,181 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

General Government Support $ 
Hydroelectric Production 
Police 
Fire 
Other Public Safety 
Public Works 
Bus 
Library 
Other Culture and Recreation 
Refuse and Recycling 

Total $ 

Balance 
Business-TVQe Activities June 30 l 2017 Increases Decreases 
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets: 
Construction in Progress $ 4,420,019 $ 2,331,091 $ (4,290,483) 

Total 4,420,019 2,331,091 (4,290,483) 

Depreciable Capital Assets: 
Land Improvements 250,568 
Buildings and Improvements 34,672,856 147,244 
Infrastructure 26,277,170 3,877,038 (10,718) 
MachinelY and Equipment 17,223,180 115,432 (104,276) 
Vehicles 954,283 337,310 (324) 

Total 79,378,057 4,477,024 (115,318) 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation: 
Land Improvements 250,568 
Buildings and Improvements 17,446,747 704,937 
Infrastructure 7,741,395 420,007 (9,617) 
MachinelY and Equipment 14,330,159 290,672 (94,187) 
Vehicles 767,977 74,192 4,905 

Total 40,536,846 1,489,808 (98,899) 

Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 38,841,211 2,987,216 (16,419) 

Total $ 43,261,230 $ 5,318,307 $ (4,306,902) 
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89,740 
264,466 
132,342 
205,270 

3,708 
2,842,666 

90,496 
172,961 

505,698 
60,687 

4,368,034 

Balance 
June 30 l 2018 

$ 2,460,627 
2,460,627 

250,568 
34,820,100 
30,143,490 
17,234,336 

1,291,269 
83,739,763 

250,568 
18,151,684 
8,151,785 

14,526,644 
847,074 

41,927,755 

41,812,008 

$ 44,272,635 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows: 

Water 
Sewer 
Total 

$ 

$ 

732,968 
756,840 

1,489,808 

NOTE 5 - RESTRICTIONS ON ASSETS 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Restricted assets consist of cash and cash equivalents for the following funds: 

Restricted 

Fund Balance Restriction 

General - Cash $ 3,016 Reserve for Duffy Fairgrounds Stadium Repairs 

General - Cash $ 547,782 Reserve for Capital Projects 

General - Cash $ 23,276 Reserve for Special Assessment Sidewalk Program Debt 

General - Cash $ 232,072 Reserve for Workers' Compensation Claims 

General - Cash $ 729,258 Reserve for General Liability Claims 

Special Revenue - Cash $ 313,265 Federal and State Community Development Grants 

Special Revenue - Cash $ 8,358 Reserve for Airport Debt Service 

Capital - Cash $ 3,230,250 Reserve for Capital Project Acquisitions and Construction 

Water - Cash $ 1,382,933 Reserve for Capital Project Acquisitions and Construction 

Sewer - Cash $ 1,555,799 Reserve for Capital Project Acquisitions and Construction 

Debt Service - Cash $ 18,510 Reserve for Debt Service 

Empire Zone - Cash $ 214,762 Reserve for Empire Zone 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 6 - NOTES RECEIVABLE 

To assist in the rehabilitation of homes and apartments of low and moderate-income persons, the 
City has been awarded various grants for its "Housing Improvement Program" from the 
Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Small Cities Program and the North 
Country HOME Consortium. The purpose of this program is to improve living conditions in 
Watertown by promoting repair and rehabilitation of the local housing stock. The primary 
objective is to eliminate conditions that might become hazardous to the health or safety of local 
residents. Energy conservation improvements, historic preservation and other necessary repairs 
will also be encouraged whenever assistance is provided under this program. Grants are subject 
to repayment if the owner moves or sells the propeliy within the number of years established by 
the grant, prorated equally per year. Loans are repaid in monthly installments ranging from five 
to thirty years and are subject to immediate repayment if the owner moves or sells the property. 
The loans are collateralized by a mortgage on the home. The grants are not collateralized. 

The City participates as an Entitlement Community in the Community Development Block Grant 
Program administered by the U.S. Depmiment of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The 
City partially uses HUD CDBG funds to perform housing rehabilitations through its Rental 
Rehabilitation Program and Owner-Occupied Housing Program. Grants are subject to repayment 
if the owner moves or sells the property within the number of years established by the grant, 
prorated equally per year. Loans are repaid in monthly installments ranging from five to ten years 
and are subject to immediate repayment if the owner moves or sells the property. The loans are 
collateralized by a mortgage on the home. The grants are not collateralized. 

The balance of the Small Cities, Home Consortium and Entitlement grants subject to repayment 
at June 30, 2018 was $1,138,988. The balance of the Small Cities and Program Income loans 
subject to repayment at June 30, 2018 was $ 727,002. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 6 - NOTES RECEIVABLE - Continued 
---~-------------------- ---------

The following table summarizes notes receivable at June 30, 2018: 

Grant Source Grant Purpose Grant Loan Tenns 

NYS Rental Rehabilitate apartment $ - Loan is subordinate to existing 
Rehabilitation building mortgages, maturing 2024 and bearing 
Section 17 interest at 6.25%. All accrued interest 
Program -1989 and principal are payable at maturity. 

DefelTed revenue has also been recorded 
equivalent to the amount of the loan 
outstanding 

CDBG Small Single purpose home $ - Loans not to exceed $20,000 to be 
Cities - 2005 ownership repaid at 0% interest in monthly 

installments over 20 - 30 years 

CDBG Small Single purpose housing $ - Over 5 years in monthly installments at 
Cities - 2006 rehabilitations a rate of$18 per $1,000 

CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ - Over 5-10 years in monthly installments 
Cities - 2008 downtown apartments at a rate of$18 per $1,000 

CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ 3,370 Up to 20 years at 0% interest for 
Cities - 2009 downtown apartments downtown apmtments and up to 10 

years at 0% for rental rehabilitations 

CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ 10,043 Up to 20 years at 0% interest for newly 
Cities -2011 downtown apartments developed rental apartments and up to 

10 years at 0% for rental rehabilitations 

CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ 129,364 Up to 20 years at 0% interest for newly 
Cities - 2012 downtown apartments developed rental apartments and up to 

10 years at 0% for rental rehabilitations 

CDBG Small City-wide housing $ 269,825 5 years - 20 years at 0% interest for 
Cities - 2013 rehabilitations newly developed rental apartments and 

5 - 10 years at 0% for City-wide 
rehabilitations 

Nmth Country Repair and rehabilitate the $ 102,780 N/A 
HOME local housing stock 
Consortium -

CDBG Housing rehabilitations $ 439,494 5 years - 10 years at 0% interest for 
Entitlement owner-occupied or rental rehabilitations 

Program Income - Repair and rehabilitate the $ 184,112 Loan repayments received from 
CDBG Small local housing stock recipients of previous CDBG Small 
Cities Cities grant awards 

Total $1,138,988 Total 
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Loan Balance 

$ 71,500 

$ 162,989 

$ 3,715 

$ 56,307 

$ 98,875 

$ 114,410 

$ 151,206 

N/A 

N/A 

$ 68,000 

$ -

$ 727,002 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM DEBT 

The City issued a bond anticipation note in the amount of $4,360,000 on May 31, 2018 maturing 
on April 1, 2019 to finance various projects reflected in the capital projects fund and enterprise 
funds. The interest rate is 3.00% with an effective net interest cost of 2.0539%. The bond 
anticipation notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the City of Watertown. 

Balance Balance 

Governmental Activities June 30, 2017 Additions Reductions June 30, 2018 

Bond Anticipation Note $ $ 2,340,000 $ $ 2,340,000 

Balance Balance 

Business-Type Activities June 30, 2017 Additions Reductions June 30, 2018 

Bond Anticipation Note $ $ 2,020,000 $ $ 2,020,000 

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the following changes occurred in long-term obligations: 

The Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2018 includes a deferred amount of $55,326 on the 
advance refunding of bonds. 

Changes in the net pension liability - propOliionate share and the changes in the total OPEB 
liability are reported in Notes 10 and 11, respectively. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

Business-Type Activities 

Balance Balance Due Within 
Business-Type Activities June 302 2017 Additions Reductions June 302 2018 One Year 

General Obligation Bonds 
Water $ 5,212,728 $ 240,000 $ (735,479) $ 4,717,249 $ 702,090 
Sewer 8,504,462 (240,000) (901,664) 7,362,798 866,298 

Total $ 13,717,190 $ $ (1,637,143) $ 12,080,047 $ 1,568,388 

Workers Compensation 
Water $ 292,193 $ 14,733 $ $ 306,926 $ 
Sewer 93,532 500,996 594,528 47,500 

Total $ 385,725 $ 515,729 $ $ 901,454 $ 47,500 

Compensated Absences 
Water $ 57,398 $ 3,975 $ $ 61,373 $ 
Sewer 48,207 $ (2,306) 45,901 

Total $ 105,605 $ 3,975 $ (2,306) $ 107,274 $ 

General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. 
These bonds generally are issued as 1 ° to 30-year serial bonds with equal amounts of principal 
maturing each year. General obligation bonds at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Interest Original Paid Outstanding Maturity 

Rate Amount June 302 2018 June 302 2018 Date 
Sanitary and Storm Sewers 9.60% $ 2,330,000 $ 25,000 $ 121112017 
Public Improvements 4.00-5.00% 2,310,000 5,000 10,000 5IJ 512021 
Public Improvements 3.25-4.00% 7,345,000 400,000 1,700,000 2115/2023 
Public Improvements 2.50-3.25% 3,220,000 325,000 325,000 9IJ 5/20 1 8 
Public Improvements 3.125-4.00% 2,225,000 150,000 675,000 12IJ5/2024 
Public Imp. Refunding, Ser.A 2.00-4.00% 2,175,000 135,000 1,290,000 I1IJ5/2025 
Public Imp. Refunding, Ser.B 2.00-3.75% 1,635,000 50,000 55,000 5IJ5/2020 
Public Imp. Refunding, Ser.C 2.00-6.00% 3,695,000 305,000 1,785,000 11115/2022 
Public Improvements 2.00-3.00% 2,035,000 175,000 525,000 6115/2021 
Public Improvements 3.00-3.50% 1,645,000 125,000 1,000,000 10115/2027 
Public Imp. Refunding 1.00- 2.625% 4,485,000 810,000 1,495,000 I1IJ5/2022 
Public Improvements, Ser.A 1.50-2.75% 1,195,000 150,000 600,000 4IJ/2024 
Public Improvements, Ser.B 2.00-3.25% 5,110,000 300,000 3,960,000 4IJ/2029 
Public Improvements, Ser.A 3.00-3.50% 10,000,000 270,000 9,200,000 6IJ5/2040 
Public Improvements, Ser.B 2.00-3.125% 5,810,000 425,000 4,525,000 6IJ5/2030 
Public Improvements 2.00-3.00% 5,130,000 455,000 4,675,000 6IJ5/2032 
Total Serial Bonds $ 60,345,000 $ 4,105,000 $ 31,820,000 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

General Obligation Bonds - Continued 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds for fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

Princiual Interest Total 

2019 $ 2,351,612 $ 629,803 $ 2,981,415 

2020 1,886,441 564,224 2,450,665 

2021 1,806,300 504,045 2,310,345 

2022 1,550,800 443,857 1,994,657 

2023 1,568,800 386,343 1,955,143 

2024 - 2028 4,303,000 1,418,939 5,721,939 

2029 - 2033 2,518,000 909,326 3,427,326 

2034 - 2038 2,585,000 482,650 3,067,650 

2039 - 2040 1,170,000 61,775 1,231,775 

Totals $ 19,739,953 $ 5,400,962 $ 25,140,915 

Business-type Activities 

Princiual Interest Total 

2019 $ 1,568,388 $ 334,856 $ 1,903,244 

2020 1,408,559 297,720 1,706,279 

2021 1,363,700 263,295 1,626,995 

2022 1,119,200 230,405 1,349,605 

2023 1,081,200 197,060 1,278,260 

2024 - 2028 4,287,000 568,417 4,855,417 

2029 - 2032 1,252,000 57,823 1,309,823 

Totals $ 12,080,047 $ 1,949,576 $ 14,029,623 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

Airport Debt 

The City transferred ownership of the Watertown International AirpOli to Jefferson County on 
March 1, 2006. In accordance with the transfer agreement, Jefferson County provided the City 
with the necessary funds to retire all outstanding general obligation bonds as they mature. The 
City invested $301,168 in State and Local Government Series securities with the proceeds 
received from Jefferson County in various amounts and at various interest rates, which will 
produce the funds necessary to meet the principal and interest obligations of the outstanding 
airport debt. The outstanding principal balance of airport debt at June 30, 2018 was $ 8,250. 

Advance Refunding 

On April 15, 2011, the City issued $2,175,000 in general obligation bonds (Series A) with an 
average interest rate of 3.64% to advance refund $2,140,000 of outstanding November 15, 1997 
serial bonds with an average interest rate of 5.03%. The net proceeds (after payment of 
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government 
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used 
to redeem all of the outstanding 1997 series bonds on May 15, 2011. A difference in cash flow 
requirements of $225,831 and a net present value savings of $175,826 were a result of this 
advance refunding by the City. 

On April 15, 2011, the City issued $1,635,000 in general obligation bonds (Series B) with an 
average interest rate of 2.37% to advance refund $1,575,000 of outstanding April 15,2000 serial 
bonds ($1,015,000) with an average interest rate of 5.19% and May 15, 2002 serial bonds 
($560,000) with an average interest rate of 4.30%. The net proceeds (after payment of 
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government 
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used 
to redeem the 2000 and 2002 series bonds on May 15, 2011. All but $40,000 of the April 15, 
2000 serial bonds and $23,750 of the May 15, 2002 serial bonds were redeemed on May 15, 
2011. A difference in cash flow requirements of $91,825 and a net present value savings of 
$84,907 were a result of this advance refunding by the City. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

Advance Refunding - Continued 

On April 15, 2011, the City issued $3,695,000 in general obligation bonds (Series C) with an 
average interest rate of 5.19% to advance refund $3,625,000 of outstanding November 15, 1997 
taxable serial bonds with an average interest rate of 7.09%. The net proceeds (after payment of 
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government 
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used 
to redeem the 1997 series bonds on May 15, 2011. Additionally, the City used $1,000,000 of 
General Fund Balance to increase the amount of outstanding November 15, 1997 taxable serial 
bonds redeemed to $4,625,000. Accordingly, all of the outstanding 1997 taxable serial bonds 
were redeemed on May 15, 2011. A combined difference in cash flow requirements of 
$2,552,088 and a net present value savings of $543,580 were the result of the advance refunding 
and use of fund balance by the City. 

On April 14, 2011, the City elected to call in and redeem on June 15, 2011 the outstanding 
$110,000 aggregate principal amount of its Hydroelectric Plant (Serial) Bonds, 2002 (Federally 
Taxable Series) dated May 15,2002, and maturing on May 15 and November 15 in each of the 
years 2012 to 2021, both inclusive, at par plus accrued interest to the redemption date, as 
specified on the face of the bonds. The bonds were part of an original issue of $190,000. 

On June 18, 2014, the City issued $4,485,000 in general obligation bonds with an average 
interest rate of 1.29% to refund $2,400,000 of outstanding January 15, 2005 serial bonds with an 
average interest rate of 3.67% and an advance refund $2,100,000 of outstanding November 15, 
2005 serial bonds with an average interest rate of 4.15%. The net proceeds (after payment of 
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government 
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used 
to redeem all of the outstanding January 2005 series bonds on July 21,2014 and the November 
2005 series bonds will be refunded on November 15, 2014. A difference in cash flow 
requirements of $346,783 and a net present value savings of $327,420 were a result of this 
advance refunding by the City. 

NOTE 9 - UNEARNED REVENUE 

General Fund: 
Unearned Property Tax Revenue, Refuse Tote Revenue, Interest on 
Investments, and Prepaid Interest Installments on Special Assessments 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Notes Receivable Funded from Grant Proceeds 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Descriptions 

The City of Watertown participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement 
System (ERS) becoming a member on June 25, 1923 and the New York State and Local Police 
and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) becoming a member on February 1, 1932 which are 
collectively referred to as New York State and Local Retirement System (the System). These are 
cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement systems. The System provides retirement benefits as 
well as death and disability benefits. The net position of the System is held in the New York 
State Common Retirement Fund, which was established to hold all net assets and record changes 
in plan net position allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as 
the trustee of the Fund and is the administrative head of the System. The Comptroller is an 
elected official determined in a direct statewide election and serves a four-year term. Thomas P. 
Dinapoli has served as Comptroller since February 7, 2007. In November 2014, he was elected 
for a new term commencing January 1, 2015. System benefits are established under the 
provisions of the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (RSSL). Once a public 
employer elects to participate in the System, the election is irrevocable. The New York State 
Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits 
cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by 
enactment of a State statue. The City of Watertown also patiicipates in the Public Employees' 
Group Life Insurance Plan (GUP), which provides death benefits in the form of life insurance. 
The System is included in the State's financial report as a pension trust fund. That report, 
including information with regard to benefits provided, may be found at 
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/index.php or obtained by writing to the New York State 
and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244. 

ERS and PFRS Benefits Provided 

The System provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. 

Tiers 1 and 2 

Eligibility: Tier 1 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans, 
must be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement benefit. There is no minimum service 
requirement for Tier 1 members. Tier 2 members, with the exception of those retiring under 
special retirement plans, must have five years of service and be at least age 55 to be eligible to 
collect a retirement benefit. The age at which full benefits may be collected for Tier 1 is 55, and 
the full benefit age for Tier 2 is 62. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

ERS and PFRS Benefits Provided - Continued 

Benefit Calculation: Generally, the benefit is 1.67 percent of final average salary for each year of 
service if the member retires with less than 20 years. If the member retires with 20 or more years 
of service, the benefit is 2 percent of final average salary for each year of service. Tier 2 members 
with five or more years of service can retire as early as age 55 with reduced benefits. Tier 2 
members age 55 or older with 30 or more years of service can retire with no reduction in 
benefits. As a result of Aliicle 19 of the RSSL, Tier 1 and Tier 2 members who worked 
continuously from April 1,1999 through October 1,2000 received an additional month of service 
credit for each year of credited service they have at retirement, up to a maximum of 24 additional 
months. 

Final average salary is the average of the wages earned in the three highest consecutive years of 
employment. For Tier 1 members who joined on or after June 17, 1971, each year of final 
average salary is limited to no more than 20 percent of the previous year. For Tier 2 members, 
each year of final average salary is limited to no more than 20 percent of the average of the 
previous two years. 

Tiers 3, 4, and 5 

Eligibility: Tier 3 and 4 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement 
plans, must have five years of service and be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement 
benefit. Tier 5 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans, must 
have 10 years of service and be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement benefit. The 
full benefit age for Tiers 3, 4 and 5 is 62. 

Benefit Calculation: Generally, the benefit is 1.67 percent of final average salary for each year of 
service if the member retires with less than 20 years. If a member retires with between 20 and 30 
years of service, the benefit is 2 percent of final average salary for each year of service. If a 
member retires with more than 30 years of service, an additional benefit of 1.5 percent of final 
average salary is applied for each year of service over 30 years. Tier 3 and 4 members with five 
or more years of service and Tier 5 members with 10 or more years of service can retire as early 
as age 55 with reduced benefits. Tier 3 and 4 members age 55 or older with 30 or more years of 
service can retire with no reduction in benefits. 

Final average salary is the average of the wages earned in the three highest consecutive years of 
employment. For Tier 3, 4 and 5 members, each year of final average salary is limited to no more 
than 10 percent of the average of the previous two years. 
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ERS and PFRS Benefits Provided - Continued 

Tier 6 

Eligibility: Tier 6 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans, 
must have 10 years of service and be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement benefit. 
The full benefit age for Tier 6 is 63 for ERS members and 62 for PFRS members. 

Benefit Calculation: Generally, the benefit is 1.67 percent of final average salary for each year of 
service if the member retires with less than 20 years. If a member retires with 20 years of service, 
the benefit is 1.75 percent of final average salary for each year of service. If a member retires 
with more than 20 years of service, an additional benefit of 2 percent of final average salary is 
applied for each year of service over 20 years. Tier 6 members with 10 or more years of service 
can retire as early as age 55 with reduced benefits. 

Final average salary is the average of the wages earned in the five highest consecutive years of 
employment. For Tier 6 members, each year of final average salary is limited to no more than 10 
percent of the average of the previous four years. 

Special Plans 

The 25-Year Plans allow a retirement after 25 years of service with a benefit of one-half of final 
average salary, and the 20-Year Plans allow a retirement after 20 years of service with a benefit 
of one-half of final average salary. These plans are available to certain police and fire retirement 
system members. 

Ordinary Disability Benefits 

Generally, ordinary disability benefits, usually one-third of salary, are provided to eligible 
members after 10 years of service; in some cases, they are provided after five years of service. 

Accidental Disability Benefits 

For all eligible Tier 1 and Tier 2 ERS and PFRS members, the accidental disability benefit is a 
pension of 75 percent of final average salary, with an offset for any Workers' Compensation 
benefits received. The benefit for eligible Tier 3, 4, 5 and 6 members is the ordinary disability 
benefit with the years-of-service eligibility requirement waived. 
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ERS and PFRS Benefits Provided - Continued 

Ordinary Death Benefits 

Death benefits are payable upon the death, before retirement, of a member who meets eligibility 
requirements as set forth by law. The first $50,000 of an ordinmy death benefit is paid in the 
form of group term life insurance. The benefit is generally three times the member's annual 
salary. For most members, there is also a reduced post-retirement ordinmy death benefit 
available. 

Post-Retirement Benefit Increases 

A cost-of-living adjustment is provided annually to: (i) all pensioners who have attained age 62 
and have been retired for five years; (ii) all pensioners who have attained age 55 and have been 
retired for 10 years; (iii) all disability pensioners, regardless of age, who have been retired for 
five years; (iv) ERS recipients of an accidental death benefit, regardless of age, who have been 
receiving such benefit for five years and (v) the spouse of a deceased retiree receiving a lifetime 
benefit under an option elected by the retiree at retirement. An eligible spouse is entitled to one­
half the cost-of-living adjustment amount that would have been paid to the retiree when the 
retiree would have met the eligibility criteria. This cost-of-living adjustment is a percentage of 
the annual retirement benefit of the eligible member as computed on a base benefit amount not to 
exceed $18,000 of the annual retirement benefit. The cost-of-living percentage shall be 50 
percent of the annual Consumer Price Index as published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor but cannot 
be less than 1 percent or exceed 3 percent. 

Funding Policies 

The ERS system is contributory except for employees who joined the New York State and Local 
Employees' Retirement System before July 26, 1976. Employees hired between July 27, 1976 
and December 31, 2009 contribute 3% of their salary and after ten years of service become 
noncontributory as well. Employees hired between January 1, 2010 and March 31, 2012 
contribute 3% of their salary for all years of public service and there is a limitation on the amount 
of overtime that can be included as wages. Employees hired after April 1, 2012 contributed 3% 
of their salary through March 31, 2013 and thereafter the percentage of salary contributed ranges 
from 3.0% to 6.0% depending on annual wages. 
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Funding Policies - Continued 

The PFRS system is contributory except for employees who joined the New York State and 
Local Employees' Retirement System before June 30, 2009. Employees hired between July 1, 
2009 and January 8, 2010 contribute 3% of their salary for 25 years or until retirement. 
Employees hired between January 9, 2010 and March 31, 2012 contribute 3% of their salary for 
all years of public service and there is a limitation on the amount of overtime that can be 
included as wages. Employees hired after April 1,2012 contributed 3% of their salary through 
March 31, 2013 and thereafter the percentage of salary contributed ranges from 3.0% to 6.0% 
depending on annual wages. 

Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the state comptroller shall certify annually the rates 
expressed as proportions of payroll of members, which shall be used in computing the 
contributions required to be made by employers to the pension accumulation fund. 

The City of Watertown is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The required 
contributions for New York State's current year ended March 31, 2018 and two preceding years 
were: 

Employer Contributions 
ERS 
PFRS 

Employee Contributions 
ERS 
PFRS 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

June 30, 2018 

1,268,232 $ 
2,354,924 $ 

128,357 $ 
48,960 $ 

June 30, 2017 

1,305,395 $ 
2,276,464 $ 

131,687 $ 
41,595 $ 

June 30, 2016 

1,343,922 
2,136,795 

124,882 
51,341 

The City's contributions made to the Systems were equal to 100 percent of the contributions 
required for each year. Each retirement system issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and supplementary information. The reports may be obtained by 
writing to: New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, 
NY 12244. 
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2018, the City of Watertown reported a liability of $1,110,015 for its proportionate 
share of the Employees' Retirement System net pension liability and a liability of $2,938,400 for 
its proportionate share of the Police and Fire Employees' Retirement System net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of March 31, 2018, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
April 1,2017. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions 
of all participating members, actuarially determined. 

At June 30, 2018, the City's proportionate share was 0.0343930% for the Employees' Retirement 
System and 0.2907128% for the Police and Fire Employees' Retirement System. The change in 
proportion since the last measurement date was (0.01334)% for ERS and (0.44144)% for PFRS. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized a pension expense of $1,264,866 for the 
Employees' Retirement System and a pension expense of $2,632,906 for the Police and Fire 
Employees' Retirement System. At June 30, 2018, the City repOlied deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows DefelTed Inflows 

Employees' Retirement System of Resources of Resources 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 395,906 $ 327,162 

Changes of Assumption 736,031 

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on 
Plan Investments 1,612,209 3,182,338 

Changes in PropOliion and Differences Between City 
Contributions and PropOliionate Share of Contributions 9,071 196,575 

City Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date 314,597 

Total $ 3,067,814 $ 3,706,075 
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - Continued 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of 
Police and Fire Retirement System of Resources Resources 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 1,209,416 $ 780,800 

Changes of Assumption 2,226,370 

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings 
on Plan Investments 2,378,290 4,789,747 

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between City 
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 10,978 671,574 

City Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date 576,296 

Total $ 6,40 I ,350 $ 6,242,121 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Employees' 
Retirement System 

$ 
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160,536 
115,185 

(835,565) 
(393,014) 

Police and Fire 
Retirement System 

$ 427,647 
360,483 

(770,506) 
(514,843) 

80,152 
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Changes in Net Pension Liability - Proportionate Share 

Balance 
Governmental Activities June 30, 2017 Additions Reductions 

Net Pension Liability -
Proportionate Share $ 8,437,846 $ $ (4,702,011) 
Total $ 8,437,846 $ $ (4,702,011) 

Balance 
Business-Type Activities June 30, 2017 Additions Reductions 

Net Pension Liability-
Proportionate Share 

Water $ 488,249 $ $ 318,084 
Sewer 435,045 292,630 

Total $ 923,294 $ $ 610,714 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

Balance 
June 30, 2018 

$ 3,735,835 
$ 3,735,835 

Balance 
June 30, 2018 

$ 170,165 
142,415 

$ 312,580 

For ERS and PFRS pension plans, employer contributions are paid annually based on the 
System's fiscal year which ends on March 31. Accrued retirement contributions as of June 30, 
2018 represent the projected employer contributions for the period April 1,2018 through June 
30,2018 based on ERS and PFRS wages multiplied by the employer's rate, by tier. The accrued 
ERS retirement contributions as of June 30, 2018 were $228,266 for govemmental activities and 
$86,331 for business-type activities. The accrued PFRS retirement contribution as of June 30, 
2018 was $971,069 for governmental activities. 
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability at March 31, 2018 was determined by using an actuarial valuation as 
of April 1, 2017, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to 
March 31, 2018. The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions. 

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2017 valuation were as follows: 

Employees' Police and Fire 
Retirement System Retirement System 

Inflation Rate 2.50% 2.50% 

Salary Scale 3.80% 4.50% 

Interest Rate 7.00% 7.00% 

Cost of living Adjustments 1.30% 1.30% 

Annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015 System's experience with 
adjustments for mortality improvements based on Society of Actuaries' Scale MP-2014. 

The actuarial assumption used in the April 1, 2017 valuation are based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015. 

The long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the target asset allocation as of March 31, 2018 are summarized on the next page. 
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Actuarial Assumptions - Continued 

Asset Type: 
Domestic Equity 
International Equity 
Private Equity 
Real Estate 
Absolute Return Strategies 
Opportunistic Portfolio 
Real Assets 
Bonds and Mortgages 
Cash 
Inflation - Indexed Bonds 

Discount Rate 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 

Rates of Return 

4.55% 
6.35% 
7.50% 
5.55% 
3.75% 
5.68% 
5.29% 
1.31% 

-0.25% 
1.25% 

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at 
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based upon the assumptions, the System's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current plan members. Therefore, the long term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate 
Assumption 

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as the City's propOliionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.00%) or 1 
percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate: 

ERS 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) 

PFRS 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

1 % Decrease 
(6.00%) 

$ 8,398,671 

1% Decrease 
(6.00%) 

$ 14,393,077 

Current 
Assumption 1 % Increase 

(7.00%) (8.00%) 

$ 1,110,015 $ (5,055,897) 

Current 
Assumption 1% Increase 

(7.00%) (8.00%) 

$ 2,938,400 $ (6,669,387) 

The components of the current-year net pension liability of the employers as of March 31, 2018, 
were as follows: 

Employers' Total Pension Liability 

Plan Net Position 

Employers' Net Pension Liability 

Ratio of Plan Net Position to the 
Employers' Total Plan Pension Liability 

Employees' 
Retirement 

System 

$ (183,400,590) 
180,173,145 

$ (3,227,445) 

98.24% 
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(In Thousands) 

Police and Fire 
Retirement 

System Total 

$ (32,914,423) $ (216,315,013) 
31,903,666 212,076,811 

$ (1,010,757) $ (4,238,202) 

96.93% 
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Bonus Retirement Plan 

Under the terms of the police and fire union contracts, the City also made available a bonus 
retirement plan to all eligible employees. To be eligible, the employee must have accumulated 20 
years of service within the retirement system and must retire within 3 years from that date. The 
following is a schedule of the benefits paid based upon the retirement date: 

15
( Year 

2nd Year 

3rd Year 

$ 5,000 

$ 4,000 

$ 3,000 

The City has reported $31,000 relating to this bonus retirement plan as part of the accrued 
compensated absences balance in the General Fund. 

NOTE 11 - POST EMPLOYMENT (HEALTH INSURANCE) BENEFITS 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan Description - The City's defined benefit OPEB plan, provides OPEB for all permanent full­
time employees of the City. The plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan 
administered by the City and funded on a pay-as-you go basis. No assets are accumulated in a 
trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75. Benefit provisions are established 
through negotiations between the City and the unions representing the employees and are 
renegotiated at the end of each of the bargaining periods. 

The City administers its Health Plan (the plan) as a single-employer, self-insured benefit plan. 
The City provides postemployment healthcare benefits to certain employees that are eligible to 
retire under the New York State Retirement Systems. The plan provides medical and prescription 
drug coverage to certain retirees and their dependents based upon the City's collective bargaining 
agreements with its various unions. The financial information for the City's plan is contained 
solely within these basic financial statements. 
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NOTE 11 - POST EMPLOYMENT (HEALTH INSURANCE) BENEFITS - Continued 

General Information about the OPEB Plan - Continued 

Benefits Provided - The City provides healthcare benefits to current and future retirees and their 
dependents through a self-funded plan administered by UMR (formerly POMCO). The eligibility 
and contribution requirements are dependent on which employee contract each member falls 
under, hire date, and years of service. The specifics of each contract are on file at the City and are 
available upon request. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms - As of the Valuation Date, the following employees were 
covered by the benefit terms. 

Business-type Business-type 
Governmental Activities - Activities -

Activities Water Fund Sewer Fund Total 
Inactive Members or Beneficiaries 
Currently Receiving Payments 278 16 12 306 

Inactive Members Entitled to but 
Not Yet Receiving Benefits 

Active Members 261 29 27 317 

Total Covered Employees 539 45 39 623 

Total OPEB Liability 

The City has obtained an actuarial valuation report as of June 30, 2018 which indicates that the 
total liability for other postemployment benefits is $131,028,291 which is reflected in the 
Statement of Net Position. The OPEB liability was measured as of September 1, 2017 and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of September 1, 2016. 
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NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT (HEAL TH INSUR~NCE) BENEFITS - Continued 

Total OPEB Liability - Continued 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs - The total OPEB liability in the September 1, 2016 
actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Measurement Date 
Rate of Compensation Increase 
Inflation Rate 
Discount Rate 

Assumed Health Care Trend Rates at June 30 
Health Care Cost Trend Rate Assumed for Next Fiscal Year 
Rate to Which the Cost Trend Rate is Assumed to Decline (the Ultimate 
Trend Rate) 

Fiscal Year that the Rate Reaches the Ultimate Trend Rate 

Additional Information 
Actuarial Cost Method 
AmOliization Method 
AmOliization Period (Years) 
Method Used to Determine Actuarial Value of Assets 

09/01117 
2.00% 
2.20% 
3.51% 

6.50% 

3.84% 
2087 

Entry Age Normal 
Level Percentage 

6.01 
NIA 

The discount rate was based on the rate for a 20-year high-quality tax-exempt municipal bond 
index as of the measurement date. 

Mortality rates were based on the sex-distinct RP-2014 Mortality Tables for employees and 
healthy annuitants, adjusted to 2006 using scale MP-2014, and projected forward with scale MP-
2015. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study rolled forward for the period July 1,2016 - June 30, 2017. 
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NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT (HEALTH INSURANCE) BENEFITS - Continued 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Business-type Business-type 
Governmental Activities - Activities -

Activities Water Fund Sewer Fund Total 
Balance at June 30,2017, as Restated $ 125,145,282 $ 9,198,243 $ 8,455,979 $ 142,799,504 

Changes for the Year: 
Service Cost $ 1,689,521 $ 139,747 $ 132,053 $ 1,961,321 
Interest 3,546,857 262,404 241,081 4,050,342 
Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs (11,711,128) (917,085) (868,291 ) (13,496,504 ) 
Benefit Payments ~3,890,9762 ~196,8752 ~198,5212 ~4,286,3722 

Net Changes $ (10,365,726) $ (711,809) $ (693,678) $ (11,771,213) 
Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 114,779,556 $ 8,486,434 $ 7,762,301 $ 131,028,291 

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.84 percent 
as of July 1,2016 to 3.51 percent as of July 1,2017. 

Sensitivity of the Total OP EB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents 
the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.51 percent) or 1 
percentage point higher (4.51 percent) than the current discount rate: 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase 
Total OPEB Liability 2.51% 3.51% 4.51% 

Total OPEB Liability $ 151,944,766 $ 131,028,291 $ 114,158,290 
Governmental Activities $ 133,102,902 $ 114,779,556 $ 100,001,593 
Business-type Activities - Water Fund $ 9,841,151 $ 8,486,434 $ 7,393,799 
Business-type Activities - Sewer Fund $ 9,001,423 $ 7,762,301 $ 6,762,898 

70 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT (HEALTH INSURANCE) BENEFITS - Continued 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability- Continued 

Sensitivity of the Total OP EB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The 
following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage 
point lower (trend decreasing to 2.84%) or 1 percentage point higher (trend decreasing to 4.84%) 
than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 

Healthcare 
1 % Decrease Cost Trend 1 % Increase 

(6.50% Rates (6.50% (7.50% 
decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to 

Total OPEB Liability 2.84%) 3.84%) 4.84%) 

Total OPEB Liability $ 112,601,972 $ 131,028,291 $ 153,028,291 
Governmental Activities $ 98,638,273 $ 114,779,556 $ 134,804,702 
Business-type Activities - Water Fund $ 7,292,999 $ 8,486,434 $ 9,967,029 
Business-type Activities - Sewer Fund $ 6,670,700 $ 7,762,301 $ 9,116,560 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized total OPEB expense of $3,765,988. At 
June 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 

Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs 

Employer Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 
(Expected Employer Contribution including Implicit Subsidy) 

Total 
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Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 

3,714,755 

$ 3,714,755 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ 

(11,250,829) 

$ (11,250,829) 
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June 30, 2018 

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT (HEALTH INSURANCE) BENEFITS - Continued 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to OPEB - Continued 

City benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of 
the OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2023 and Thereafter 
Total 

NOTE 12-FUNDBALANCES 

Nonspendable Fund Balances 

$ (2,245,675) 
(2,245,675) 
(2,245,675) 
(2,245,675) 
(2,268,129) 

$ (11,250,829) 

Non-spendable fund balance consists of prepaid stop loss ll1surance on the City'S health 
insurance plan. 

Restricted Fund Balances 

Restricted fund balances consist of the following: 

General Fund 

Capital Reserves - Pursuant to Section 6-c of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York, the City established a capital reserve fund to finance future capital improvement projects. 

Workers Compensation - An amount reserved to pay workers' compensation claims. 

Insurance - An amount reserved to pay claims and judgments for the City'S general liability and 
the cost of providing health care benefits to eligible employees and retirees. 
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NOTE 12 - FUND BALANCES - Continued 

Restricted Fund Balances - Continued 

Tourism - Balance of City's share of the hotel occupancy tax enacted by Jefferson County which 
must be used to promote and develop tourism in the City. 

Debt Service - Balance of debt issued on behalf of property owners who elected to participate in 
the City's ten-year special assessment program for sidewalk replacements. 

Community Development Fund 

Community Development - An amount restricted as to use for providing decent housing, a 
suitable living environment, and 0ppOliunities to expand economic opportunities, principally for 
low- and moderate-income persons. 

Other Governmental Funds 

Mandatory Reserve for Indebtedness - Pursuant to Section 165.00 of the Local Finance Law of 
the State of New York, the proceeds, which will not be used for the specific purpose of the 
borrowing, plus any interest earned or capital gain realized on these proceeds must be used only 
for payment of principal and/or interest from which these proceeds were derived. 

Economic Development - An amount which represents the net position of the Watertown 
Empire Zone. 

Other Fund Balance Disclosures 

Deficit Fund Balance 

No funds as of June 30, 2018 had a deficit fund balance. 

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 

No funds as of June 30, 2018 had excess expenditures over appropriations. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 13 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

During the course of normal operations, the City records numerous transactions between funds 
including expenditures for services as well as transfers to finance various projects and debt 
payments. 

Interfund receivable and payable balances arising from these transactions as of June 30, 2018 
were as follows: 

Interfund Interfund 
Receivables Payables Revenue Expenditures 

General Fund $ 596,481 $ 227,170 $ 166,475 $ 2,649,453 
Special Revenue Fund 28,361 78,435 
Water Fund 36,459 48,256 15,000 
Sewer Fund 60,857 15,315 15,000 
Non-Major Fund 128,000 295 1,409,137 31,804 
Capital Project Funds 52,362 554,762 1,328,049 113,969 
Total $ 874,159 $ 874,159 $2,903,661 $2,903,661 

Interfund Eliminations 

For financial statement purposes, the following inter-fund balances have been eliminated: 

Self-funded Health 
General Fund Insurance Fund 

Revenues $ $ 7,413,727 
Expenditures 7,413,727 
Total $ 7,413,727 $ 7,413,727 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 14 - OPERATING LEASES 

State Street Parking Lot 

The City leases a parking lot located at 250-270 State Street from Washington Street Propeliies. 
The term of the original lease is for a five-year period from October 22, 2016 through October 
21, 2021. The annual rent for the current fiscal year is $3,100. The lease payment is payable in 
advance by September 15th of the previous year. 

Minimum future rentals to be paid over the term of the lease for fiscal year ended June 30 are as 
follows: 

2019 

2020 

2021 

Total 

Fairgrounds Property Lease 

$ 

$ 

3,200 
3,300 

3,400 

9,900 

The City is the lessor of a portion of the Fairgrounds property to the Watertown Family YMCA. 
The lease dated July 9, 2009 is for a term of twenty-five years with an option to renew by 
Watertown Family YMCA for an additional fifteen years if such renewal is approved by the New 
York State Legislature. 

Minimum future rentals on the lease as of June 30 are as follows: 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
Thereafter 
Total 

$ 

$ 

75 

26,768 
27,735 
27,735 
27,735 
27,735 

323,199 

460,907 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 14 - OPERATING LEASES - Continued 

Public Safety Building Lease 

The City has entered into an amended Inter-Municipal Agreement with the County of Jefferson, 
New York, for the joint operation and maintenance of a County/City Public Safety Building. 
Minimum annual lease payments are calculated on a pro rata basis of square footage utilized by 
the City and consist of the costs incurred for debt service, operation and maintenance expenses. 
These lease payments are offset by a percentage of the costs incurred by the City for the 
construction of the facility. Fmihermore, the City is liable for a portion of the debt regardless of 
the City continuing the lease or not. Total rental expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2018 
were $195,766. The final debt service payment on the initial construction was made in the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014. 

Equipment Leases 

The City is the lessor of certain office equipment. The lease dated August 13, 2013 is for a term 
of five years. Minimum future rentals on the lease as of June 30 are as follows: 

2019 $ 434 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 15 - TAX ABATEMENTS 

The City receives revenue through numerous Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) agreements with 
various local businesses and housing developments. The PILOT agreements were granted by 
either the Jefferson County Industrial Agency or by the City itself. 

City PILOT City Start 
Owner Name Assessed Value Taxable Payment Abatement % Abated Date 

JCIDA - WICLDC $ 1,374,000 $ $ 7,378 $ 4,320 36.93% 2017 

JCIDA - Stream 4,488,600 38,214 0.00% 2003 

JCIDA - Roth Industries 1,794,300 11,457 3,819 25.00% 2006 
JCIDA - Woolworth 
Watertown LLC 2,708,800 3,675 19,386 84.06% 2015 

JCIDA - New York Airbrake 960,000 2,043 6,130 75.00% 2016 

JCIDA - Current Applications 435,700 927 2,782 75.00% 2016 

JCIDA - Rail Spur 60,000 511 100.00% 2006 

Wateliown Housing Authority 19,873,900 66,700 49,744 118,884 70.26% Various 

Brighton Apartments 871,900 3,882 3,541 47.70% 1991 

Bugbee Housing 1,589,200 13,530 100.00% 1987 

Olympic Apartments 1,457,300 3,774 8,633 69.58% 1991 
Creekwood Housing 
Development Fund Company Inc 3,024,200 186,600 24,158 93.83% 2013 
Creekwood II Housing 
Development Fund Company Inc 5,809,800 226,000 47,538 96.11% 2014 
Creekwood Housing 
Development Fund Company Inc 2,188,300 183,700 17,066 9l.61% 2013 

Curtis Apartments Assoc 2,121,300 6,403 11,657 64.55% 1978 

Watertown Associates 4,887,350 17,607 24,001 57.68% 1982 

$ 53,644,650 $ 663,000 $ 145,104 $ 305,956 

The Jefferson County IndustrialAgency (JCIDA) also has the authority to exempt sales tax and 
mortgage recording taxes which could lower City tax revenues. For the fiscal year ended June 
30,2018 there were no sales tax or mortgage recording tax abatement agreements entered into by 
the Jefferson County Industrial Agency that reduced these City tax revenues. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation 

The City has been named in several claims arising out of the conduct of its business, including 
claims for property damage, personnel practices, personal injury, false arrest, and disputes over 
contracts and suits contesting assessments. These claims, in the opinion of City officials, will not 
result in material judgments against the City, and, therefore, are not expected to have a material 
effect on the general-purpose financial statements. Additionally, as of June 30, 2018, the 
financial impact of these claims, if any, cannot be determined. Accordingly, the general-purpose 
financial statements have not been adjusted to reflect the potential result of these claims. 
However, the City has accumulated a reserve of $727,969 as of June 30, 2018 for un-funded 
general liability claims. 

Grant Programs 

The City participates in a number of Federal and State grant programs. These programs are 
subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors of their representatives. The City 
believes, based upon its review of current activity and prior experience, the amount of 
disallowances resulting from these audits, if any, will not be significant to the City'S financial 
position or results of operations. 

Environmental Concerns 

On April 27, 2007, the City acquired several parcels of property from Black Clawson known as 
Sewall's Island. On December 26, 2006, the City received a grant under the Environmental 
Restoration Program (ERP) from the New York State Department of Conservation for the 
investigation of the Sewall's Island project site. The ERP grant provided $705,540 towards the 
investigation phase of the project. The City'S local share to the ERP grant was funded from a U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency Brownfields Pilot Program grant. The City Council has spent 
$900,545 for a professional services contract with Lu Engineers to prepare the investigation 
phase of the Environmental Restoration Program. As of June 30, 2018, the City is not expected 
to have any liability for this potential environmental clean-up due to the "safe harbor" provisions 
of the ERP grant. 

The City is engaged in many actiVItIes (i.e. water and sewer service, refuse collection, and 
gasoline storage) in the normal course of operations that are potentially hazardous to the 
environment. As of June 30, 2018, the City is not aware of any significant environmental 
problems that should be disclosed in the financial statements. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

Landfill Closure 

State and federal laws and regulations required the City to close its landfill site in 1993. Although 
the closure has been completed, the City must continue to perform certain maintenance and 
monitoring functions at the site for thiliy years after closure. The costs incurred during the 
closure were expensed as incurred. The post-closure monitoring occurs three times a year at an 
estimated annual expenditure of $18,000. At June 30, 2018, an estimated $108,000 in post­
closure care cost will be incurred over the remaining 6-year period. This liability is recorded as 
long-term debt in the Statement of Net Position and is amortized in the General Fund at 
approximately $18,000 each year. The current landfill-monitoring contract expired in 2000. The 
estimated total liability was computed assuming future contracts monitoring costs would be 
comparable. 

Black River Fund 

The City of Wateliown owns a hydroelectric facility on the Black River. On November 21, 
1994, the City Council approved an agreement between the City and New York Rivers United, 
an environmental group, for the establishment of a Black River Fund. On June 16, 1995, the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Agency (FERC) issued the City a hydroelectric generation license. 

This Fund is established in consideration of the immitigable impacts of the Watertown Project 
and for the purpose of financing projects and facilities that enhance the natural resources and 
human values of the Black River within the City's boundaries. This Fund will be used to finance 
projects and facilities which conserve and enhance the fish, plant and wildlife resources of the 
Black River, improve water quality, educate the public about the river and its uses, and provide 
for recreation. 

This Fund is being administered by a Black River Fund Committee, which shall determine the 
distribution of funding each year. If able to demonstrate that their proposal provides a clear 
public benefit, governmental agencies, non-profit organizations, education institutions, and 
individuals shall be eligible to receive funding from the Black River Fund. On December 16, 
2006, the Committee allocated $20,000 to New York Rivers United to document the river's 
ecology in terms of quality, water quantity, general biodiversity and ecological status since the 
passage of the 1977 Federal Clean Water Act. The Committee contributed $80,000 to the City for 
its Hold Brothers Access Improvement Project between 2008 and 2009. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

Black River Fund - Continued 

Under the terms of the agreement, within sixty (60) days of the City's acceptance of a new FERC 
license, the City agreed to contribute $30,000 to cover the first three (3) years of the license's 
forty (40) year term. The City started to contribute $10,000 annually beginning in the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2003, for a total agreed contribution of $400,000. The balance in the fund as of 
June 30, 2018 was $98,45l. 

Additionally, the City agreed to establish a replacement reserve to accumulate funds towards the 
anticipated cost of repairing, replacing, or retiring of energy generation equipment at the facility. 

Electrical Distribution System Agreement 

The City approved a sale of its Electrical Distribution System in March 1991. In connection with 
the sale, the parties agreed to the following: 

1. National Grid was to operate the existing municipal hydro plant at no cost to the City 
beginning January 1, 1991 and extending until removal of the plant from service for 
reconstruction. 

2. The City would proceed in the process of undertaking re-licensing of the hydro plant in 
accordance with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) rules and 
regulations and would undertake the refurbishing of the plant. 

3. The City will lease all of its surplus power to National Grid for a term not exceeding forty 
years. 

The City commenced reconstruction of the hydroelectric plant on June 2, 1997. The project, 
which cost $9,075,000, was completed in January 2000. 

Metropolitan Planning Organization 

After the 2010 Census was completed, the U.S. Census Bureau delineated an Urbanized Area 
that includes the City of Wateliown. The Urbanized Area designation set in motion changes to 
the City's relationship with several federal programs. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

Metropolitan Planning Organization - Continued 

A Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) was formed to plan for the expenditure of federal 
highway and transit funds within a Metropolitan Planning Area (MPA) that was delineated 
around the Urbanized Area. The Watertown-Jefferson County TranspOliation Council was 
designated as the MPO on September 19,2014 by the Commissioner of the NYS Department of 
Transportation on behalf of the Governor. The MPO is governed by a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City, Jefferson County and NYS Department of Transportation. 

The federal Office of Management and Budget used Othe Urbanized Area to create the 
Watertown-Fort Drum, NY Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) on February 28, 2013. As a 
Principal City in the MSA, Wateliown became an Entitlement Community under U.S. Housing 
and Urban Development's Community Development Block Grant program. This means the City 
will be receive an annual allocation of community development funds. 

The City will also become responsible for enforcing U. S. Environmental Protection Agency 
storm water regulations under the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) program. 

NOTE 17 - RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, a prior year restatement of $391,004 was made to record 
revenues from the Federal Transit Administration for the City's bus system for Fiscal Year 
2013114 and Fiscal Year 2014115 reimbursable expenses. Since the City is now considered an 
urbanized area as a result of the 2010 census its Federal reimbursements for the bus system 
changed from Section 5311 funding to Section 5307 funding. There have been delays in 
converting and learning the requirements of this different funding stream. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, a prior year restatement of $203,857 and $327,804 was 
made in the Water and Sewer Funds respectively to record a refund of overcharges to the 
Development Authority of the North Country applicable to the period April 1, 2013 through 
June 30, 2017. 

The City has an agreement with the Development Authority of the NOlih Country (DANe), who 
in turn has an agreement with the United States Army, to produce and deliver treated fresh water 
to Fort Drum and other outside water districts. The City, DANC and the Army have a similar 
agreement for the provision of wastewater treatment services whereby sewage from Fort Drum 
and other outlying communities is delivered to the City's wastewater treatment plant. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 17 - RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION - Continued 

DANC is routinely audited by the Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) for its charges to the 
United States Army. As the contracts between the Army and DANC as well as the sub­
agreement between the City and DANC are considered cost-based contracts, DCAA is also able 
to audit the costs of the City's water and wastewater treatment plants. 

DCAA completed in October 2017, the audit ofDANC's Fiscal Years ending March 31, 2014, 
2015 and 2016. The General Fund charges all non-General Fund departments (Water, Sewer and 
Library) for all of their electric consumption based upon the rates established by the Power 
Purchase Agreement the City has with National Grid. DCAA's review of the City's electricity 
costs charged from the General Fund's hydro-electric plant concluded that the charges were not 
actual costs and therefore not compliant with the agreements. The City, DANC and DCAA 
agreed to recalculate the water and wastewater treatment plants' electricity costs based upon a 
market rate approach. 

Due to the City'S implementation of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reportingfor Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, a one-time prior-period adjustment 
of $116,094,599 must be made to the beginning net position to reflect the transition from GASB 
Statement No. 45 to GASB Statement No. 75 as of July 1,2017. The impact of this change does 
not flow through the annual OPEB expense calculation. The following details the change in the 
City'S beginning of year net position due to the GASB 75 implementation. 

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position 

Governmental 
Activities Business-Type 

Net Position Beginning of Year, as Previously Stated $ 51,280,389 $ 34,526,124 

Restatement Due to Receipt of Federal Reimbursement Related 

to Bus System 391,004 

Restatement Due to Repayment of Previous Charges to Development 

Authority of the North Country (531,661) 

GASB Statement No. 75 Adjustments: 

Net Increase in Total OPEB Liability - GASB 75 Implementation (106,387,405) (13,993,566) 

Deferred Outflows at July 1,2017 - Benefit Payments Subsequent to 

the Measurement Date 3,890,976 395,396 

Net Position Beginning of Year, as Restated $ (50,825,036) $ 20,396,293 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 17 - RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION - Continued 

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 

Fund Balance Beginning of Year, as Previously Stated 

Restatement Due to Receipt of Federal Reimbursement Related to Bus System 

Fund Balance Beginning of Year, as Restated 

$ 

$ 

General Fund 

14,767,778 

391,004 

15,158,782 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds 

Water Sewer 

Net Position Beginning of Year, as Previously Stated $ 16,496,504 $ 18,029,620 

Restatement Due to Repayment of Previous Charges 
to Development Authority of the NOlih Country (203,857) (327,804) 

GASB Statement No. 75 Adjustments: 
Net Increase in Total OPEB Liability - GASB 75 ImplementatiOl (7,102,974) (6,890,592) 

Deferred Outflows at July 1,2017 - Benefit Payments Subsequent to 
the Measurement Date 196,875 198,521 

Net Position Beginning of Year, as Restated $ 9,386,548 $ 11,009,745 

NOTE 18 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 10, 2019, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED 
RATIOS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service Cost 

Interest 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 

Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs 

Benefit Payments 

Net Change in total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning, As Restated 

Total OPEB Liability - Ending 

Covered Payroll 

Total OPEB as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 

Notes to Schedule: 

June 30, 2018 

$ 1,961,321 

4,050,342 

(13,496,504) 

(4,286,372) 

$ (11 ,771 ,2l3 ) 

142,799,504 

$ 131,028,291 

$ 19,575,482 

669.35% 

Changes of Assumptions. Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes 
in the discount rate each period. The discount rate in effect for this period is 3.51 %. 

10 years of historical information was not available upon implementation. A additional year of 
information will be added each year subsequent to the year of implementation until 1 ° years of 
historical data is available. 

See paragraph on supplementary schedules included in independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

BUDGET ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

Resources (Inflows) 
Real Property Taxes $ 9,111,644 $ 9,111,644 
Real Property Tax Items 316,000 316,000 
Non-Property Taxes 19,125,000 19,125,000 
Departmental Income 5,630,436 5,634,036 
Intergovenunental Charges 134,785 134,785 
Use of Money and Property 144,275 144,275 
Licenses and Permits 100,250 100,250 
Fines and Forfeitures 116,000 116,000 
Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss 250,000 1,350,000 
Miscellaneous Local Sources 1,264,347 1,264,347 
Interfund Revenue 1,507,158 1,507,083 
State Source 5,719,910 5,719,910 
Federal Sources 709,800 709,800 
Transfers from Other Funds 30,000 30,000 

Amounts Available for Appropriation 44,159,605 45,263 z130 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows) 
General Government Support 6,283,994 5,441,624 
Public Safety 15,807,704 16,895,928 
Transp0l1ation 4,790,012 4,636,137 
Economic Assistance and Development 18,500 21,500 
Culture and Recreation 1,742,751 1,857,151 
Home and Community Services 1,690,023 1,536,468 
Employee Benefits 10,479,782 11,604,432 
Debt Service 3,034,444 3,034,444 
Transfers to Other Funds 2,083,339 2,779,339 

Total Charges to Appropriations 45,930,549 47,807,023 

Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over 
Charges to Appropriations (1,770,944) (2,543,893) 

Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance l z770z944 2,543,893 

Excess / (Deficiency) of Resources Over 
Charges to Appropriations $ $ 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, Restated 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

Actual Variance With 

Amounts Final Budget 

Budgetary Favorable 

Basis (Unfavorable) 

$ 8,998,253 $ (113,391) 
337,063 21,063 

19,295,558 170,558 
6,665,001 1,030,965 

129,787 (4,998) 
132,328 (11,947) 
97,902 (2,348) 
94,797 (21,203) 

1,740,361 390,361 
1,282,970 18,623 
1,457,064 (50,019) 
5,655,825 (64,085) 

253,934 (455,866) 
166,475 136z475 

46,307,318 1,044,188 

5,147,165 294,459 
16,695,247 200,681 
4,557,226 78,911 

19,789 1,711 
1,796,301 60,850 
1,321,933 214,535 

11,520,477 83,955 
2,996,516 37,928 
2,649,453 129,886 

46,704,107 1,102,916 

(396,789) 2,147,104 

{2,543,8932 

{396,7892 $ (396,789) 

15,158,782 

$ 14,761,993 

See paragraph on supplementary schedules included in independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - NYSLRS PENSION PLAN 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

Employees' Retirement System (ERS) 

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.03439300% 0.03452640% 0.03415490% 0.35340500% 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ 1,110,015 $ 3,244,181 $ 5,481,964 $ 1,193,889 

City's Covered Payroll $ 9,130,292 $ 8,906,648 $ 8,685,504 $ 8,549,403 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a 
Percentage of its Covered Payroll 12.16% 36.42% 63.12% 13.96% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 98.24% 94.70% 90.70% 97.90% 

Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) 

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.29071280% 0.29512720% 0.31948320% 0.30481120% 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ 2,938,400 $ 6,116,959 $ 9,459,217 $ 839,022 

City's Covered Payroll $ 10,604,741 $ 10,390,767 $ 9,983,832 $ 9,556,238 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a 
Percentage of its Covered Payroll 27.71% 58.87% 94.75% 8.78% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 96.93% 93.50% 97.90% 99.00% 

10 years of historical data was not available upon implementation. An additional year of historical information will be added each year subsequent to 
the year of implementation until 10 years of historical data is available. 

See paragraph on supplementary schedules included in independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS - NYSLRS PENSION PLAN 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

Employees' Retirement System (ERS) 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 1,268,232 $ 1,305,395 $ 1,343,922 $ 1,657,173 

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution 1,268,232 1,305,395 1,343,922 1,657,173 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ $ $ $ 
-

City's Covered Payroll $ 9,130,292 $ 8,906,648 $ 8,685,504 $ 8,549,403 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 13.89% 14.66% 15.47% 19.38% 

Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 2,354,924 $ 2,276,464 $ 2,136,795 $ 2,494,595 

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution 2,354,924 2,276,464 2,136,795 2,494,595 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ $ $ $ 
-

City's Covered Payroll $ 10,604,741 $ 10,390,767 $ 9,983,832 $ 9,556,238 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 22.21% 21.91 % 21.40% 26.l0% 

10 years of historical data was not available upon implementation. An additional year of historical information will be added each year subsequent to 
the year of implementation until 1 ° years of historical data is available. 

See paragraph on supplementary schedules included in independent auditor's report. 
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BOWERS ~ MPANY 
CPAs PLLC 

CERTI FIED PUBLI C ACCO UNTANTS · BUSINESS CONSU LTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely 
presented component unit, each major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 , and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Watertown, New 
York's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 10,2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of 
Watertown, New York's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine 
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Watertown ' s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Watertown, New York's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions , to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity' s financial statements will not be prevented 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

120 M adi son Street, 1700 AXA Tow er II , Syracuse, NY 132 02 Phone: 315.23 4.1100 CD Fax: 3 15.23 4.1111 
11 20 Commerce Park Drive East, Watertown, NY 13601 Phone: 315.788.7690 • Fax: 315 .788.0966 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Wateliown, New York's 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral pati of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Watertown, New York 
January 10,2019 
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BOWERS ~ MPANY 
CPAs PLLC 

CERT IF IED PUB LI C ACCO UNTANTS · BUSINESS CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Watertown, New York's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the City of Watertown, New York's major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2018. The City of Watertown, New York's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Watertown, 
New York's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal A'wards 
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of 
Watertown, New York's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major program. However, our audit does not provide legal determination of City of Watertown, 
New York's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, City of Wateliown, New York, complied, in all material respects, with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have direct and material effect on each 
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of City of Watertown, New York is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Watertown, 
New York's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Watertown, New York's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Watertown, New York 
January 10,2019 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

CFDA Pass-Through Federal Passed Through 
Federal GrantorlPass-Through EntitylProgram Title Number Grant # Expenditures to Subrecipients 

---_.- ---

US Department of Housing & Urban Development 
Direct Award: 

Community Development Block Grant I Entitlement Grant 14.218 B-14-MC-36-0121 $ 300,906 $ 208,230 
Community Development Block Grant I Entitlement Grant 14.218 B-15-MC-36-0121 235,241 195,700 
Community Development Block Grant I Entitlement Grant 14.218 B-16-MC-36-0121 297,709 103,564 
Community Development Block Grant I Entitlement Grant 14.218 B-17-MC-36-0121 52,876 

Total Community Development Block Grant IEntitlement Grant Cluster 886,732 507,494 

Passed Through New York State Homes & Community Renewal: 
Community Development Block Grant I Program Income 14.228 54,394 54,359 

Total Community Development Block Grant I State's Loan 54,394 54,359 

Total Department of Housing & Urban Development 941,126 561,853 

US Department of Transportation 
Direct A ward: 

Federal Transit Administration 20.507 292,295 
Passed Through New York State: 

State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 PD-OO 126-(023) 3,257 
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PIN 7753.15.121 531,970 
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PIN 7753.70.121 58,397 

Total Department of Transportation 885,919 

US Department of Justice 
Direct Award: 
Bullet Proof Vest Partnership 16.607 4,004 

Total Department of Justice 4,004 

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE $ 1,831,049 $ 561,853 

See paragraph on supplementary schedules included in independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of federal 
award programs administered by the City, which is described in Note 1 to the City's 
accompanying financial statements, using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Federal 
awards that are included in the schedule may be received directly from federal agencies, as well 
as federal awards that are passed through from other government agencies. The information is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule 
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements. 

Indirect costs may be included in the reported expenditures, to the extent that they are included in 
the federal financial reports used as a source of the data presented. The City has elected not to 
use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance applied to overall 
expenditures. 

Matching costs (the City's share of celiain program costs) are not included in the reported 
expenditures. 

The amounts reported as federal expenditures were obtained from the federal financial reports for 
the applicable programs and periods. The amounts reported in these repOlis are prepared from 
records maintained for each program, which are reconciled with the City'S financial reporting 
system. 

NOTE 2 - REVOLVING LOAN FUNDS - NOT SUBJECT TO COMPLIANCE 

Notes receivable activity for the Community Development Block Grant Revolving Loan Fund is 
as follows: 

CFDA# 

14.228 $ 

Balance at 
July 1,2017 

789,757 $ 

Issuance Forgiveness 
Balance at 

June 30, 2018 

493,853 $ 144,622 $ 1,138,988 
~~~~=='=~~ 

The above program has no continuing compliance requirements other than continued loan 
payments, therefore, the outstanding loan balance has not been included in the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards and major program determination. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of City of 
Watertown, New York. 

2. No significant deficiencies related to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the 
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Watertown, 
New York were disclosed during the audit. 

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are 
reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on 
Internal Control over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs of the City of 
Watertown, New York expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs. 

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with the UnifOlm Guidance 
are reported in this Schedule. 

7. The program tested as a major federal program was -Community Development Block Grant / 
Entitlement Grant - CFDA #14.218. 

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000. 

9. The City of Watertown, New York was determined to be a low-risk auditee. 

NOTE B - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT FINDINGS 

There were no findings to repOli. 

NOTE C - MAJOR FEDERAL A WARD PROGRAMS FINDINGS AND 
QUESTIONED COSTS 

There were no findings to repOli. 

96 



CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE A - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT FINDINGS 

There were no prior year audit findings. 

NOTE B - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS FINDINGS AND 
QUESTIONED COSTS 

There were no prior year audit findings. 
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STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 



BOWERS ~ MPANY 
CPAs PLLC 

CE RTIFI ED PU BLI C ACCO UNTANTS ' BUSINESS CONS ULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED BASED 
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

Report on Compliance for State Transportation Assistance Programs 

We have audited the City of Watertown, New York's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in Part 43 of the New York State Codification of Rules and Regulations 
(NYCRR) that are applicable to each state transportation assistance program tested for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. The programs tested are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs for state transportation 
assistance expended. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants applicable to its state transportation assistance programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on City of Watertown, New York's compliance for 
each state transportation assistance program tested based on our audit of compliance. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
Part 43 of NYCRR. Those standards and Part 43 require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above, that could have a direct and material effect on the state 
transportation assistance programs tested, has occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about City of Watertown, New York's compliance with those requirements and 
performing other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each state transportation 
assistance program tested. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of 
Watertown, New York's compliance with those requirements. 
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Opinion on Each State Transportation Assistance Program Tested 

In our opinion, City of Watertown, New York complied, in all material respects, with the 
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its state transportation assistance 
programs tested for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of City of Watertown, New York is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to state transportation assistance programs tested. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Watertown, New York's 
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect 
on state transportation assistance programs tested in order to determine our auditing procedures 
that are appropriate for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each state 
transportation assistance program tested and to test and report on the internal control over 
compliance in accordance with Part 43 of NYCRR, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opllllOn on the effectiveness of City of Watertown, New York's internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management of employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a state transportation assistance program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a state transportation assistance program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a state transportation assistance program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Report on Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended 

We have audited the financial statements of City of Watertown, New York as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated January 10, 2019 which contained 
an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on City of Watertown, New York's financial statements taken as a whole. 
The accompanying schedule of state transportation assistance expended is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis as required by Part 43 ofNYCRR and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unites States of America. In our 
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state transpOliation assistance expended is fairly stated, 
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of Part 43 of NYSCRR. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Watertown, New York 
January 10,2019 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 
June 30, 2018 

Program Title Ref. Number 

Consolidated Local Street and Highway Improvement 
Program Capital - Reimbursement / CHIPS 732059 

Marchiselli Match For Federal Aid Highway Projects D032467 
State Aid D035315,D035316 
Bus Transit Operating Assistance 

Total 

Expenditures 

$ 549,361 
99,674 

295,678 
282,165 

$ 1,226,878 

See accompanying notes to schedule of state transportation assistance expended. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 
June 30, 2018 

NOTE A - GENERAL 

The Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended of the City of Watertown, New York, 
presents the activity of all major financial assistance programs provided by the New York State 
Department of Transportation. 

NOTE B - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended is presented using the accrual basis 
of accounting. 
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR STATE 
TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 
June 30, 2018 

Summary of Auditor's Results 

Internal control over state transportation assistance expended: 

Material weaknesses identified 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not 

considered to be material weaknesses 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
Program tested: 

Summary of Audit Findings: 

Identification of State Transportation Assistance 
Programs tested: 

Compliance Findings and Questioned Costs 

No matters were reported. 
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None reported 

None reported 

Unmodified 

N/A 

Consolidated Local 
Street & Highway 
Improvement Program 
Capital Reimbursement­
CHIPS Contract# 732059 

State Aid 
#D035315, D035316 



BOWERS ~ MPANY 
CPAs PLLC 

CERTIFI ED PU BLI C ACCO UNTANTS BUSINESS CONSU LTANTS 

Senior Management, Mayor and 
Members of the City Council of 
the City of Watertown, New York 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Watertown, New 
York for the year ended June 30, 2018, we considered the City's internal control structure to plan 
our auditing procedures for expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide 
assurance on the internal control structure. 

However, during our audit we noted suggestions involving operational matters that are presented 
for your consideration. We previously reported on the City ' s internal control structure in our 
report dated January 10, 2019. This letter does not affect our report dated January 10, 2019 on 
the financial statements of the City of Watertown, New York. 

We will review the status of the comment during our next audit engagement. Our comment and 
recommendation, which have been discussed with appropriate members of management, are 
intended to improve the internal control structure or result in other operating efficiencies. We 
will be pleased to discuss the comment in further detail at your convenience, to perform any 
additional study of this matter, or to assist you in implementing the recommendation. Our 
comment is summarized as follows: 

Update Federal Awards Internal Control Policies and Procedures (Uniform Guidance) 

The City currently has effective procedural controls in place over the management of federal 
award Programs. Key changes under the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform 
Guidance expand the rules regarding internal controls over federal awards to require that they be 
documented in writing in the City's policies and that management should evaluate and document 
the results of ongoing monitoring to identify internal control issues. The written internal controls 
should specifically address each of the applicable compliance requirements of the Federal Award 
Programs. The City has written policies and procedures for allowable costs and procurement. 
Furthermore, some federal award programs (e.g. CDBG) require that policies and procedures be 
written to address the compliance requirements of the specific program. 
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Senior Management, Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Watertown, New York 
January 10,2019 
Page 2 

Recommendation 

We recommend that the City continue to update their written federal award internal control 
policies and procedures to include other applicable provisions under the Uniform Guidance such 
as repOliing, program income, subrecipient monitoring and period of performance. The City 
should also address compliance areas specific to the CDBG grant program. 

We wish to thank the Comptroller and staff for their suppOli and assistance during our audit. 

This repOli is intended solely for the information and use of City of Watertown, New York's 
Senior Management, Mayor and Members of the City Council. 

Watertown, New York 
January 10,2019 
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BOWERS ~ MPANY 
CPAs PLLC 

CERTIFIED PU BLI C ACCOUNTANTS · BUSINESS CONSU LTAN TS 

January 10, 2019 

Senior Management, Mayor 
And Members of the City Council 
The City of Watertown 
Watertown, NY 13601 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental actIvItIes, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund , and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of City of Watertown, New York for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities 
under generally accepted auditing standards Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform 
Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We 
have communicated such information in our letter to you dated October 31, 2018. Professional 
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by City of Watertown, New York are described in Note 1 to 
the financial statements. City of Watertown, New York adopted all new applicable accounting 
standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"). As described in 
Note 2 to the financial statements, City of Watertown, New York changed accounting policies 
related to reporting for postemployment benefits by adopting Statement of Governmental 
Accounting Standards No. 75 , Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions. Accordingly, the cumulative effect of the accounting change as of July 1, 
2017 is to report additional other postemployment benefit liability in the amount of 
$120,380,971 and additional deferred outflows of resources in the amount of $4,286,372 on the 
Statement of Net Position with a corresponding reduction in net position of $116,094,599 on the 
Statement of Activities. We noted no transactions entered into by City of Watertown, New York 
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant 
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate 
affecting the Ci ty of Watertown, New York's financial statements was: 
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Senior Management, Mayor 
And Members of the City Council 
The City of Watertown 
Page 2 

Management's estimate of the depreciation of fixed assets is based on estimated useful 
lives. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimated useful 
lives in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole 

Certain financial statement disclosures are patiicularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was: 

The disclosure of post-employment benefits in Note 11 to the financial statements 
was developed by an actuarial firm hired by the City. These estimates are based on 
projected salaries and life expectancies of the various participants. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Peliorming the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management 111 performing and 
completing our audit. 

Corrected ~Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. There were no material misstatements to report. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditors' report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested celiain representations from management that are included 111 the 
management representation letter dated January 10,2019. 

Nfanagement Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to City of Watertown, New York's 
financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on 
those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 



Senior Management, Mayor 
And Members of the City Council 
The City of Watertown 
Page 3 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as City of Watertown, New 
York's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the schedule of the changes in the City's total OPEB 
liability and related ratios, the budgetary comparison schedule - general fund, schedule of the 
City's share of the net pension liability - NYSLRS Pension Plan, and the schedule of the City's 
Contributions - NYSLRS Pension Plan which are required supplementary information (RSI) that 
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit 
the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, which 
accompanies the financial statements but is not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made celiain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and 
methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not 
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our 
audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to 
the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of management, the Mayor and members of the 
City Council of the City of Wateliown, N ew York and is not intended to be, and should not be, 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 



January 15,2019 

To: Richard M. Finn, City Manager 

From: Michael A. Lumbis, Planning and Community Development Director 

Subject: Community Development Block Grant Program Income 

Prior to the City becoming an Entitlement Community under the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program, the City was awarded CDBG 
funds on a competitive basis from New York State through the Small Cities CDBG 
Program. The City was very successful in obtaining funding through this program and 
was awarded grant funding almost every year from 2000 to 2013 for various housing 
rehabilitation projects. 

These housing rehabilitation projects provided property owners funding to 
rehabilitate both owner occupied and rental units. For owner occupied rehabilitation, 
income qualified property owners were eligible for 100% grants provided they continued 
to own and live in their house during the 5 year compliance period. For rental 
rehabilitation, if owners continued to own their rental properties and rent to low and 
moderate income persons during the 5-year compliance period, 50% of the project cost 
converted to a grant. The other 50% of the project cost was a low interest loan that was 
paid back to the City over 5 years. 

The loans that were paid back to the City and any funds that were 
recaptured because the applicant did not comply with the grant requirements are 
considered "Program Income". Program income is accounted for separately from other 
revenue in the City budget and must be utilized for other CDBG eligible projects. 

Up to this point, New York State has allowed the City, and other 
municipalities, to retain and reuse our program income as needed for additional CDBG 
activities that benefit the community. Over the years, our CDBG program income has 
been used to fund additional owner occupied and rental housing rehab projects as well as 
other smaller eligible projects. Up until now, there has been no deadline for spending 
these funds and the City has been able to use them as needed. 

However, in a letter received by the City last year, NYS Homes and 
Community Renewal (HCR) has advised the City that due to audit findings they received 
from HUD, they now require that municipalities return any uncommitted program income 
in their possession on March 31,2019 or received after that date. Currently, the City has 
approximately $370,000 in uncommitted program income. 



HCR will allow the City to utilize the program income funding we 
currently have, provided it is used for an eligible CDBG activity that meets all CDBG 
requirements and is either spent or committed prior to March 31, 2019. Commitment of 
funds can be achieved when the local recipient legislative body has formally allocated 
funds to a specific project in the public record or has executed a written agreement with a 
business, homeowner or other eligible person committing funds to a specific activity. 
Any program income in the City'S possession that has not been committed in writing by 
March 31,2019 must be returned to HCR. Additionally, any program income that is 
received by the City after April 1, 2019 must be returned to the State at the end of each 
subsequent state fiscal year. 

Staff has discussed various CDBG eligible projects that the funding could 
be used for including additional housing rehabilitation projects and a sidewalk 
replacement project on Central Street. The housing rehabilitation projects are certainly 
CDBG eligible and would fill a need in the community, however, the City's last few 
Annual Action Plans for CDBG Entitlement funds have allocated significant funding for 
housing rehabilitation. 

In addition, during the development of the 2018 Annual Action Plan, the 
City Council expressed a strong desire to utilize more CDBG funds for infrastructure 
related projects such as sidewalks and ADA ramps. Directing this funding to the 
replacement of the sidewalks on Central Street would fulfill that desire and make a much 
needed improvement to the neighborhood. The sidewalks would also be a nice follow up 
to the recent curbing and paving project that occurred on the street and would be 
responsive to recent public inquiries and requests that the City has received to improve 
and replace the sidewalks along this corridor. Staff is therefore recommending that the 
City proceed with the replacement of the sidewalks on Central Street utilizing this 
funding. 

The Engineering Department has completed a preliminary cost estimate 
and has determined that replacing the existing sidewalks with 5' wide sidewalks would 
cost about $350,000. The $370,000 that is available to commit to the project would 
provide for a small contingency to account for potential cost overruns and to cover other 
costs such as tree removal and tree planting. 

If the City Council concurs with this recommendation, I will prepare a 
resolution for the February 4, 2019 meeting that formally commits up to $370,000 in 
program income for the replacement of the sidewalks on Central Street. 

Action: City Manager recommends that the City Council direct Staff to prepare a 
resolution for the February 4,2019 meeting that commits the unexpended balance of 
CDBG Small Cities Program Income to the replacement ofthe sidewalks on Central 
Street. 



January 15,2019 

To: The Honorable Mayor and City Co 

From: Richard M. Finn, City Manager 

Subject: 30th Annual Local Government Conference 

The NYS Tug Hill Commission is again offering their Annual Local 
Government Conference to be held on March 28, 2019 at Jefferson Community College. 

Please review the Conference Sessions and let us know if you would like 
to attend, noting the Workshop for each session for which you would like to join. So that 
we are able to process the payment, I ask that you return the Registration Information 
page by the next regular Council Meeting. 
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Local Government Conference 2019 
NYS Tug Hill Commission 

30th Annual Local Government Conference 
Thursday, March 28, 2019 

LINKS 

Jefferson Community College, 1220 Coffeen Street, Watertown, NY 1360: 

TWO EASY WA YS TO REGISTER 

1. Online: Go to https://lgc2019.eventbrite.com to pay electronically until March 19tt 

2. Mail: Complete and print the registration form to pay with a check or voucher. 

The form is a fillable pdf, which can be typed in, printed, and mailed to the office with payn 

Alternatively, the blank form can be printed and filled in by hand, and then mailed with pay 

to: NYS Tug Hill Commission, 317 Washington Street, Watertown, NY 13601 

Detailed session descriptions are available here. 

Please call our office at (315)785-2380 (toll-free in the region at 888-785-2380) with que~ 

about the event, or if you have a problem registering. 



$50 Registration postmarked by March 8th 
$100 Registration postmarked March 9th through March 15th 
$150 Registration postmarked March 16th until day of event 

Day of conference registration, only form of payment accepted will be checks. No cash p 
No refunds will be issued after March 8th. No registrations by phone, fax, or email. 

Please join us for this opportunity to interact with associates and other local government of 

from across the state as we work together to find solutions to problems and issues that chal 

our communities. Jefferson Community College in Watertown, NY continues to be a wondE 

host for our conference. Over 30 vendors will be showcased in the gym where you will regi~ 

the morning, have lunch at noon and a reception at 4 p.m. Please join us for the day! 

Overview of the Day 

7:30 - 8:30 a.m. ~ Registration & Breakfast wi Exhibitors 

8:30 - 9:00 a.m. ~ Welcoming Remarks & Keynote Speaker 

9:15 - 10:30 a.m. ~ 1st Concurrent Session 

10:45 a.m. - Noon ~ 2nd Concurrent Session 

Noon - 1:00 p.m. ~ ~ ~ Lunch 

1:15 p.m. - 2:30 p.m. ~ 2nd Concurrent Session 

2:45 p.m. - 4:00 p.rn. ~ 3rd Concurrent Session 

4:00 p.m. ~ ~ ~ Reception 

SEARCH 

Search this website ... 
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Session 1 
9:15 - 10:30 a.m 

1A. Developing an Effective Fund 
Balance Policy 
This session will discuss what a fund 
balance is, how much fund balance a 
municipality should keep each year, the 
benefits of having a fund balance, and 
what factors a municipality needs to think 
about when deciding the amount to keep. 

1B. Development Ready 
This session will discuss: how to attract 
the right development to your community; 
focus in on a specific industry; forecast 
infrastructure costs; anticipate 
development/redevelopment costs; 
budget and estimate capital improvement 
costs; and educate staff, board members 
and the public about development and 
infrastructure costs. This knowledge is 
powerful! Knowing and understanding 
the complete financial impact of a 
development to a community is priceless. 

1C. Managing Land Use on Highway 
Corridors 
Changing land use and incremental 
growth along highway corridors is a 
common problem for all communities. 
Integrating land use planning with 
transportation planning is an effective 
way for communities to address the 
gradual deterioration of traffic flow, 
pedestrian safety and even the economic 
viability of local businesses resulting 
from unplanned commercial growth. 
Addressing land use along highways is 
critical to preserving highway function 
while, at the same time, improving 
public safety, economic vitality and the 
character of the community. This session 
will explore ways of managing land use 
to avoid congestion, confusing traffic 
patterns and accident potential along 
transportation corridors to maintain or 
improve community character. 

1 D. ZBA Basics 
This session will focus on the statutory 
tests boards must follow to grant use 
and area variances and proper handling 
of zoning interpretations. Meeting 
procedures and notice requirements will 
also be discussed, along with the ZBA's 
relationship with enforcement officials 
and the planning board. 

1 E. Federally Mandated Reasonable 
Suspicion Training 
This session will review reasonable 
suspicion testing and the role of the 
supervisor in making the determination 
to send safety sensitive employees for 
reasonable suspicion drug or alcohol 
testing. The presentation will cover who is 
required to be tested; when testing should 
occur; the testing procedures and what 
should happen if an employee does not 
pass the test. 

1 F. Records Management Essentials 
This session discusses the importance 
of records management, general records 
management principles and activities, 
and tips and strategies to help your 
local government move forward with 
implementing the things you learn. 

1G. Rural Drug Epidemic: It's Real & 
It's Local 
This session will discuss real issues 
of the rural drug epidemic in the North 
Country and what local officials need to 
know about it. 

Session 2 
10:45 a.m - Noon 

2A. Working with Communities on 
Flood Resilience Efforts 
This session will help communities 
plan for an uncertain future. Attendees 
will gain an understanding of potential 
extreme weather impacts, and other 
environmental and economic threats, in 
their region. 

Session 3 
1 :15 - 2:30 p.m. 

3A. Basics of a Hazard Mitigation Plan 
This session will include an overview 
of FEMA's National Flood Insurance 
Program (NFIP) and review the 
community's roles and responsibilities in 
administering this program at the local 
level. NYSDEC is committed to proViding 
local floodplain administrators and other 
municipal officials with the tools needed 
to ensure all floodplain development is 
done in a safe manner that meets the 
requirements of the NFIP. 

2B. Distressed & Abandoned 
Properties: Understanding New York's 
New Zombie PropertY Law 
Abandoned and blighted properties aren't 
only eyesores, they can have a negative 3B. Property Maintenance: pealing 
effect on neighborhoods, residents and with Jynkv Yards & Messy Conditions 
entire communities. This session will Local boards get many complaints from 
address the issue of zombie properties local residents who are tired of living next 

to "junk." This session will review the 
and what the state law requires property various types of regulations municipalities 
owners and banks to do in order to 
address distressed and abandoned can use to address the upkeep of private 

property. Also discussed will be the 
properties. difficult process of enforcement t . 
2C: Zoni~g & ~and ~se Law 3C. Regulating Short-term Rentals 
ThiS session Will prOVide a land use and We have seen the explosion in popularity 
zoning case law update summarizing of individual homeowners or investors 
important decisions and new trends in utilizing popular websites to rent out 
municipal land use and zoning issues rooms, single-family homes, and 
from our state courts. It will also include a apartment units for short periods of 
discussion on current municipal trends for time. This change often results in impacts 
trying to address and resolve community to neighboring property owners and 
opposition to development projects. the community at large. This session 

20. Record Keeping Tips for planning 
& Zoning Boards 
Napoleon Bonaparte once said, "History 
is the version of past events that people 
have decided to agree upon." The same 
is true of minutes, findings, and the 
decisions that are issued by planning 
boards and zoning boards of appeals. 
This session will discuss why boards 
should strive to make records that are 
of value to enforcement personnel, 
applicants, municipal attorneys, and 
current and future boards. This session 
will also discuss minutes, findings, and 
the decision document. 

2E. Employment Practices Liability: 
How Vulnerable Are You? 
Employment Practices Liability covers 
municipalities against claims or lawsuits 
filed by employees, former employees 
and employment candidates regarding 
their employment relationship with 
an employer. This session will help 
protect municipalities against claims 
of discrimination, sexual harassment 
claims, wrongful termination, emotional 
distress and breach of contract. 

2F. Managing Inactiye Records 
Careful management of inactive records 
storage is critical to the success of a 
records management program. This 
session will discuss: importance of 
inactive records storage; basic steps 
involved in setting up a facility; 
ownership and custody of inactive 
records; equipment, supplies, and safety 
concerns; and how to develop inactive 
records facility policies and procedures. 

2G. Engaging the Amish in Yoyr 
Commynity 
This session will discuss how your 
community can work with Amish families 
in your community to address issues of 
safety. Whether it is addressing the safety 
of Amish vehicles on the highways or 
building barns and homes. 

will discuss these short-term rentals, 
the efforts to regulate them, case law 
interpreting such efforts, and tips on 
fashioning regulation. 

3D. Understanding & Applying SEQRA 
This session will examine the State 
Environmental Quality Review Act 
(SEQRA) by breaking down both its 
procedure and substance. It will take 
a look at the EAF Parts 1, 2, and 3 
and will discuss key SEQRA topics 
such as lead agency, negative and 
positive declarations, significant adverse 
environmental impacts, and mitigation. 

3E. Work Zone Safety 
Traffic safety in work zones is the biggest 
concern for highway workers. Highway 
officials are responsible for protecting 
employees and the traveling public from 
injury, which can be difficult to accomplish 
in work zones. This session will address 
important ways traffic safety can be 
accomplished in work zones. 

3F. Electronic Death Registration 
Svstem & Vital Records Updates 
Does your office have the Electronic 
Death Registry (EDR) yet? If not, it will 
be coming to your office soon. NYS 
Department of Health officials will discuss 
updates to the EDR program and will be 
available to answer questions on vital 
records procedures. 

3G. Essential Tools for Successful 
Public Engagement 
This session will review and describe 
effective public partiCipation strategies. 
Participants will learn how to: identify 
key issues early in a project process; 
design effective public engagement 
processes that respond to the key issues; 
and select engagement techniques that 
align with project goals, schedules, and 
the communities that will be engaged. 
The session is designed for local officials 
who interact with the public during site 
plan and subdivision reviews, planning 
processes, and project approvals. 

Session 4 
2:45 - 4:00 p.m. 

4A. Making NY Coynt: How the 2020 
Censys Will Work & Why it is Critical 
to Get a Fyll Coynt in NYS 
The 2020 census is right around the 
corner. Did you know that this census will 
focus on using the internet to increase 
response rates? Find out what your 
community can do to help bridge the 
digital divide, identify and reach out to 
"hard to count" groups, and more. 

4B. Cybersecurity Resources for Local 
Governments 
Local municipalities throughout the 
United States are consistently faCing 
varied cyber threats from many different 
sources. This session will explore these 
threats and the actors behind them, and 
then discuss free resources available to 
all local governments through the Multi­
State Information Sharing and Analysis 
Center (MS-ISAC). 

4C. Water Qyality for planning Boards 
An introduction to water quality, what 
does water quality mean in community 
planning and what communities can do 
through land use measures and through 
encouraging good land stewardship to 
protect water quality at the town and 
village level. 

40. Ethical Considerations for 
Mynicipal Boards & Planners 
This session explores concepts relating 
to ethics and conflicts of interest for 
local elected officials, including defining 
conflicts, identifying possible pitfalls and 
offering solutions to difficult to navigate 
situations. This session will also examine 
the relevant rules, including those dealing 
with local ethics codes and boards of 
ethics, and will discuss several actual 
cases which demonstrate the application 
of the rules. 

4E. Roadside Pitches Best 
Management Practices to Reduce 
Floods. Droughts & Water Pollution 
When rainfall pounds impervious 
surfaces and compacted soils, it runs off 
rapidly instead of percolating down to the 
groundwater. The runoff can contribute 
to flooding and carries pollutants that 
degrade water quality. The management 
practices for roadside ditches have 
been implemented in large part without 
considering the impacts on downstream 
water resources. This session will 
provide guidelines for adjusting ditch 
management practices to improve 
the quantity and quality of our water 
resources. 

4F. Organizing Records for OSC Audit 
This session will discuss organizing key 
records and properly recording minutes 
with a State Comptroller's audit in mind. 
It will also highlight common errors found 
by auditors, actions clerks can take to 
correct them, and will include a question 
and answer period. 

4G. Essential Tools for Syccessfyl 
Public Engagement (continued) 
This session will be a continuation of 3G. 

Registration Opens: 7:30 a.m. 
Lunch: Noon -1 :00 p.m. ~ 

Reception: 4:00 • 5:00 p.m. 
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30th Annual Local Government Conference 
Thursday, March 28, 2019 

Jefferson Community College, 1220 Coffeen Street, Watertown, NY 

TWO EASY WAYS TO REGISTER 
1. Online: Go to https://l~c2019.eventbrite.com to pay electronically. Online registration ends March 15th. 
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